
 

 

 

 

DESCANSO 

COMMUNITY 

WATER 

DISTRICT 

 

 

September 19, 2023 

 

Board Meeting 

 

 



POSTED: 

NOTICE 

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Descanso Community Water District 

(DCWD) has been called for: 

Tuesday, September 19, 2023, 7:00 pm 

Descanso Town Hall, Viejas Grade Blvd., Descanso, CA 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

2. ROLL CALL.

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

4. PUBLIC COMMENT: An opportunity for the public to comment on any topic that is within the
jurisdiction of the Board and not on this agenda. No Board action is authorized for items not on this
agenda. The total amount of time allocated for public comment may be limited, and each speaker
may be limited to no more than 3 minutes (Brown Act, Section 54954.3).

5. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:  The Board will review the draft minutes from the Regular Meeting
held on June 20, 2023, and Special Meeting on July 25, 2023 and take appropriate action.

6. FINANCIAL REPORT:  The District’s accountant will present the financial report to the Board. The
Board will consider approval and take appropriate action.

7. DCWD FINANCIAL AUDIT OF 2021-22:  The District’s Auditor or his representative will present the
results of the 2022-23 Financial Audit and the Board will take appropriate action.

8. RFP/RFQ for 2022-2023 DCWD FINANCIAL AUDIT SERVICES: The Board will review proposal
submitted by Nigro and Nigro for the proposed RFP/RFQ for 2022-23 Financial Audit Services and
beyond and take appropriate action.

9. AUDIT PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT: The District Engineer will update the Board regarding
the Treatment Project Status and the Board will take appropriate action.

10. STATUS OF WELL NO. 7 IMPROVEMENTS AND IRON MANGANESE TREATMENT FACILITY
IMPROVEMENTS:  The District Engineer will update the Board regarding the Treatment Project
Status and the Board will take appropriate action.

11. PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATION FEASIBLITY STUDY FOR GUATAY MUTUAL BENEFIT
CORPORATION: The District Engineer provide an presentation of the consolidation and feasibility
study for Guatay Mutal and the Board will take appropriate action.

12. CLOSED SESSION CONTRACT DISCUSSION: The Board will discuss the current contract for
engineering services and take appropriate action.

13. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: The GM will provide a report for activities occurring since the last
meeting.

A. Water Quality and customer complaints
B. Water usage and testing results
C. Engineering Report
D. Q&A

1



 

 
14. DCWD BOARD DIRECTORS NEWSLETTER: The Board will discuss a draft outline of the DCWD 

Board of Directors Newsletter and take appropriate action. 

15. OTHER ITEMS DIRECTLY RELATED TO PREVIOUS AGENDA ITEMS ABOVE AS MAY BE BROUGHT 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

16. MOTION TO ADJOURN 
 
 

Board of Directors 

Maureen Phillips 
President 

(619) 445-6042 

Sheri Minix 
Director 

(619) 823-4216 

Lee Johnson 
Financial Officer 
(619) 445-4122 

Vacancy  Vacancy Dan DeMoss 
General Manager 
(916) 616-7761 

NOTE:  Arrangements will be made for handicapped accessibility as required.  Please contact the District by calling 
(855) 224-6981 (7 days a week-24/7). The next regular meeting of the Descanso Community Water District Board 
of Directors will be held on December 19, 2023. 

 

  

2



 

Item 1 

 

CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3



 

Item 2 

 

ROLL CALL: 

1. Maureen Phillips  

2. Sheri Minx 

3. Lee Johnson 

3. Dan DeMoss 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



 

Item 3 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

The Board will review and discuss any last-minute revisions to the posted agenda. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

5



 

Item 4 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

An opportunity for the public to comment on any topic that is within the jurisdiction of the 
Board and not on this agenda.  No board action is authorized for items not on this agenda.  The 
total amount of time allocated for public comment may be limited and each speaker may be 
limited to no more than 3 minutes (Brown Act Section 54854.3). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

6



 

Item 5 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:  

The Board will review the draft minutes from the Regular Meeting held on June 20, 2023, and 
Special Meeting on July 25, 2023 and take appropriate action. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

7



Descanso Community Water District                  POB 610      Descanso, CA 91916 

Minutes 
A Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Descanso Community Water District (DCWD) 
has been called for: 

 

Tuesday, June 20th, 2023, 7:00 pm 
Descanso Town Hall, Viejas Grade Blvd., Descanso, CA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: The meeting was called to order by President 
Phillips at 7:03 PM. 

 

2. ROLL CALL: Members present were Phillips, Johnson, and Minix. Operations Manager Julie 
Meeks with SUSP, SUSP/DCWD Operations Manager Travis Creamer, SUSP/DCWD 
Billing Specialist Cierra Boykin and Jason Kaminsky with HNK CPAs.  

 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Since item #8 is currently not available for review, it was agreed 
that a special meeting will be held and that it will be tabled until further notice. It was 
also once again asked that “Final Acceptance for Viejas Boulevard Pipeline 
Improvements” be removed from item #7 on the agenda as it still had not been 
removed. A motion to approve the agenda with the two adjustments was given by 
Johnson and a second by Minix. A vote was taken, 3 approved and 0 opposed. 

 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT: No comments were made by the public.  

 

5. SWEARING IN NEW BOARD MEMBER SHERI MINIX: Sheri Minix was sworn into the 
Descanso Community Water District’s Board of Directors. No action needed. 

 

6. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE MARCH 2023 MEETING: A motion to approve the 
minutes was made by Johnson and a second by Phillips. A vote was taken, 3 approved and 
0 opposed. 

 

7. FINANCIAL REPORT: Jason Kaminsky with HNK CPAs went over the financial report with 
the board and answered all questions. No action needed. 

 
8. PROPOSED FY 2023/2024 BUDGET: Item #8 has been tabled until further notice. 

 
9. ACCOUNTING SERVICES ENGAGEMENT RENEWAL: Kaminsky went over the contract with 

the board as they reviewed it. A motion to approve the contract to renew accounting 
8



Descanso Community Water District                  POB 610      Descanso, CA 91916 

services with HNK CPAs was made by Johnson and a second by Minix. A vote was taken, 3 
approved and 0 opposed. 

 
10. UPDATE ON AUDIT 2021-2022 AND ISSUANCE FOR REQUEST FOR QUOTE (RFQ) FOR 

AUDITOR SERVICES FOR 2022-2023 AND 2023-2024 FISCAL YEARS: Phillips had started off 
by explaining how she has received notice that we were out of compliance since our audit 
was never received. The auditor, Brian Hadley, said he would have it done by August 11th 
which is the date we were given that we would receive a site visit had the audit still not 
been received. Kaminsky answered some questions from Johnson regarding the contract 
with Hadley. A special meeting was discussed for budget and to approve an RFP/Q that 
would be sent to legal for review and then sent out. A motion to approve a request for 
quotes on auditor services and a special meeting were made by Minix and a second by 
Johnson. A vote was taken, 3 approved and 0 opposed.  

 
11. GENERAL MANAGERS REPORT: Travis Creamer went over the General Managers Report 

and answered any questions. He explained that the CCR would be put on the website by 
July 1st and that a note would be put on the bills letting customers know to contact us for a 
physical copy. Meeks stated how we have been “re-districted” and are now under Imperial 
District. Meeks also went over our current past due status and the steps we have taken so 
far since the covid restrictions have been lifted. It was discussed that a separate policy and 
procedure be written for shut-offs. No action needed.  
 

12. DCWD BOARD OF DIRECTOR’S NEWSLETTER: Phillips would like to create a letter 
announcing Gary Sanner’s passing as well as Minix joining the board to put be on the 
website. A motion to approve the letter to be put on the website was made by Minix and a 
second by Johnson. A vote was taken, 3 approved and 0 opposed.  
 

13. SUCH OTHER ITEMS DIRECTLY RELATED TO THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED MATTERS AS MAY BE 
BROUGHT BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: No action needed.  

 
14. MOTION TO ADJOURN: A motion was given by Minix and a second by Johnson to adjourn 

the meeting at 8:25 PM. A vote was taken, 3 approved and 0 opposed. 

        

Board of Directors 

Maureen Phillips 
President 

(619) 445-6042 

Sheri Minix 
Director 

(619) 823-4216 

Lee Johnson 
Finance Officer 
(619) 445-4122 

 

9



Descanso Community Water District                  POB 610      Descanso, CA 91916 

Vacancy Vacancy 
 

Dan DeMoss 
General Manager 
(916) 616-7761 

 
 

10



Descanso Community Water District                  POB 610      Descanso, CA 91916 

Minutes 
A Special Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Descanso Community Water District 
(DCWD) has been called for: 

 

Tuesday, June 25th, 2023, 7:00 pm 
Descanso Town Hall, Viejas Grade Blvd., Descanso, CA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: The meeting was called to order by President 
Phillips at 7:04 PM. 

 

2. ROLL CALL: Members present were Phillips, Minix, and Johnson. Dan DeMoss with CRWA, 
SUSP/DCWD Operations Manager Travis Creamer, SUSP/DCWD Billing Specialist Cierra 
Boykin and Jason Kaminsky with HNK CPAs.  

 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Defer and put on hold Item #6 as nothing has been received from 
auditor. No action needed. 

 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT: No comments were made by the public.  

 

5. DCWD 2023-2024 BUDGET: Kaminsky went over the budget and answered any questions. 
He suggested that if a tractor is not bought this year, that it should be dropped from 
next year’s budget. DeMoss said that there should be no consideration to raise the 
rates again until the treatment plant is complete. A motion to approve the 2023-2024 
budget was made by Johnson and a second by Minix. A vote was taken, 3 approved and 
0 opposed. 

 

6. DCWD FINANCIAL AUDIT OF 2021-22: Tabled until further notice; Phillips explained the 
status regarding the audit according to the auditor. No action needed. 

 

7. RFP/RFQ FOR 2022-2023 DCWD FINANCIAL AUDIT SERVICES: Phillips went over the RFP 
and how we should go with the version that Procopio sent. Audit firms will have until 
August 15th to return their proposals. A motion to approve the RFP with changes and send 
out was made by Minix and a second by Sanner. A vote was taken, 3 approved and 0 
opposed. 

 
8. UPDATE ON WATER TREATMENT PROJECT STATUS AND PROJECT ENGINEERING: DeMoss 

went over the project timeline and information that was provided by James Owens, the 
11



Descanso Community Water District                  POB 610      Descanso, CA 91916 

engineer. September 2024 is the projected completion of the project. DeMoss answered 
questions from Phillips regarding additional funding. No action needed. 

 
 

9. SUCH OTHER ITEMS DIRECTLY RELATED TO THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED MATTERS AS MAY BE 
BROUGHT BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: No action needed.  

 
10. MOTION TO ADJOURN: A motion was given by Johnson and a second by Minix to adjourn 

the meeting at 7:51 PM. A vote was taken, 3 approved and 0 opposed. 

        

Board of Directors 

Maureen Phillips 
President 

(619) 445-6042 

Sheri Minix 
Director 

(619) 823-4216 

Lee Johnson 
Finance Officer 
(619) 445-4122 

 

Vacancy Vacancy 
 

Dan DeMoss 
General Manager 
(916) 616-7761 

 
 

12



 

Item 6 

FINANCIAL REPORT:   

The District’s accountant will present the financial report to the Board. The Board will consider 

approval and take appropriate action. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________

13



 09/12/23  Descanso Community Water District

 Statement of Net Position
 As of June 30, 2023

Jun 30, 23

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash

General Fund7573-Cal Bank

Installment Fund-USDA Series 21 56,320

Reserve Fund-USDA Series 2021 11,831

Depr Reserve-USDA Series 2021 11,468

General Fund7573-Cal Bank - Other 183,590

Total General Fund7573-Cal Bank 263,209

Checking7680-Cal Bank 24,375

Emgncy/Cap ImproveFund-Cal Bank 540,150

Installment Fund - US Bank 280

Reserve Fund - US Bank 37,882

Total Cash 865,896

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 865,896

Total Checking/Savings 865,896

Accounts Receivable

Customer Accounts Receivable

Customer Accounts Receivable

Customer Prepayments -2,918

Customer Accounts Receivable - Other 270,013

Total Customer Accounts Receivable 267,095

Total Customer Accounts Receivable 267,095

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -290

Total Accounts Receivable 266,805

Other Current Assets

Loan Receivable-USDA 359,000

Security Deposits 3,710

Materials and Supplies 29,231

Prepayments

G&A 266

Taxes/Fees 158

Total Prepayments 424

Total Other Current Assets 392,365

Total Current Assets 1,525,066

Fixed Assets

Utility Plant-At Original Cost

Utility plant-original cost 3,118,280

Total Utility Plant-At Original Cost 3,118,280

Accumulated Depreciation

Utility Plant-Acc Depr -1,008,001

Total Accumulated Depreciation -1,008,001

 Page 1 of 2
 Unaudited - No assurance is provided on these financial statements 14



 09/12/23  Descanso Community Water District

 Statement of Net Position
 As of June 30, 2023

Jun 30, 23

Total Fixed Assets 2,110,279

Other Assets

Uncapitalized Fixed Assets -WIP 934,484

Total Other Assets 934,484

TOTAL ASSETS 4,569,829

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 42,513

Other Current Liabilities

Current Portion of LTD

Loan Payable - Union Bank of Ca 17,800

Loan Payable - SD County 4,323

USDA Series 2021A Short Term 24,000

USDA Series 2021B Short Term 7,000

Total Current Portion of LTD 53,123

Interest Accrued

Int Accr-LTD-Outside 18,066

Total Interest Accrued 18,066

Total Other Current Liabilities 71,189

Total Current Liabilities 113,702

Long Term Liabilities

Long-Term Debt

Loan Payable - UBOC 4/2038 359,436

Loan Payable-SD County 1/2041 99,674

USDA Series 2021A Long Term 1,445,000

USDA Series 2021B Long Term 396,000

Total Long-Term Debt 2,300,110

Total Long Term Liabilities 2,300,110

Total Liabilities 2,413,812

Equity

Previous Net Position 2,082,409

Net Income 73,609

Total Equity 2,156,018

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 4,569,830

 Page 2 of 2
 Unaudited - No assurance is provided on these financial statements 15



 09/12/23  Descanso Community Water District

 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, & Change in Net Position
 April through June 2023

Apr 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget May 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Operating Revenues 39,971 41,314 -1,343 97% 42,222 43,953 -1,731 96%

Total Income 39,971 41,314 -1,343 97% 42,222 43,953 -1,731 96%

Gross Profit 39,971 41,314 -1,343 97% 42,222 43,953 -1,731 96%

Expense

Operating Expenses 798 1,117 -319 71% 1,076 1,203 -127 89%

Water Treatment 160 3,312 -3,152 5% 385 770 -385 50%

Repairs and Maintenance 824 1,478 -654 56% 862 1,478 -616 58%

Transmission & Distribution 26,228 26,989 -761 97% 26,226 26,989 -763 97%

Depreciation 5,850 5,850 0 100% 5,850 5,850 0 100%

General & Administrative 4,554 3,591 963 127% 4,601 3,592 1,009 128%

Total Expense 38,414 42,337 -3,923 91% 39,000 39,882 -882 98%

Net Ordinary Income 1,557 -1,023 2,580 -152% 3,222 4,071 -849 79%

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

Treatment Plant Project Charge 7,639 7,687 -48 99% 7,639 7,687 -48 99%

Viejas Grade Project Charge 1,581 1,591 -10 99% 1,581 1,591 -10 99%

Supp Debt Charge 4,505 4,533 -28 99% 4,505 4,533 -28 99%

Interest Income 382 15 367 2,547% 899 15 884 5,993%

Total Other Income 14,107 13,826 281 102% 14,624 13,826 798 106%

Other Expense

Interest Expense 4,522 4,550 -28 99% 4,102 4,550 -448 90%

Total Other Expense 4,522 4,550 -28 99% 4,102 4,550 -448 90%

Net Other Income 9,585 9,276 309 103% 10,522 9,276 1,246 113%

Net Income 11,142 8,253 2,889 135% 13,744 13,347 397 103%

 Page 1 of 2
 Unaudited - No assurance is provided on these financial statements

16



 09/12/23  Descanso Community Water District

 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, & Change in Net Position
 April through June 2023

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Operating Revenues

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense

Operating Expenses

Water Treatment

Repairs and Maintenance

Transmission & Distribution

Depreciation

General & Administrative

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

Treatment Plant Project Charge

Viejas Grade Project Charge

Supp Debt Charge

Interest Income

Total Other Income

Other Expense

Interest Expense

Total Other Expense

Net Other Income

Net Income

TOTAL

Jun 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget Apr - Jun 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

41,736 43,950 -2,214 95% 123,929 129,217 -5,288 96%

41,736 43,950 -2,214 95% 123,929 129,217 -5,288 96%

41,736 43,950 -2,214 95% 123,929 129,217 -5,288 96%

1,785 1,497 288 119% 3,659 3,817 -158 96%

360 3,604 -3,244 10% 905 7,686 -6,781 12%

969 1,478 -509 66% 2,655 4,434 -1,779 60%

26,228 26,989 -761 97% 78,682 80,967 -2,285 97%

0 5,850 -5,850 0% 11,700 17,550 -5,850 67%

4,976 10,042 -5,066 50% 14,131 17,225 -3,094 82%

34,318 49,460 -15,142 69% 111,732 131,679 -19,947 85%

7,418 -5,510 12,928 -135% 12,197 -2,462 14,659 -495%

7,615 7,688 -73 99% 22,893 23,062 -169 99%

1,576 1,592 -16 99% 4,738 4,774 -36 99%

4,490 4,533 -43 99% 13,500 13,599 -99 99%

1,145 15 1,130 7,633% 2,426 45 2,381 5,391%

14,826 13,828 998 107% 43,557 41,480 2,077 105%

0 4,550 -4,550 0% 8,624 13,650 -5,026 63%

0 4,550 -4,550 0% 8,624 13,650 -5,026 63%

14,826 9,278 5,548 160% 34,933 27,830 7,103 126%

22,244 3,768 18,476 590% 47,130 25,368 21,762 186%

 Page 2 of 2
 Unaudited - No assurance is provided on these financial statements

17



 09/12/23  Descanso Community Water District

 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, & Change in Net Position
 July 2022 through June 2023

Jul 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget Aug 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Operating Revenues 44,549 46,017 -1,468 97% 45,903 46,017 -114 100%

Total Income 44,549 46,017 -1,468 97% 45,903 46,017 -114 100%

Gross Profit 44,549 46,017 -1,468 97% 45,903 46,017 -114 100%

Expense

Operating Expenses 2,281 1,570 711 145% 2,198 1,615 583 136%

Water Treatment 19,863 3,251 16,612 611% 90 3,559 -3,469 3%

Repairs and Maintenance 1,387 1,467 -80 95% 3,135 1,467 1,668 214%

Transmission & Distribution 26,220 26,990 -770 97% 26,220 26,989 -769 97%

Depreciation 5,869 5,869 0 100% 5,869 5,869 0 100%

General & Administrative 3,943 3,524 419 112% 2,617 3,592 -975 73%

Total Expense 59,563 42,671 16,892 140% 40,129 43,091 -2,962 93%

Net Ordinary Income -15,014 3,346 -18,360 -449% 5,774 2,926 2,848 197%

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

Treatment Plant Project Charge 7,639 7,687 -48 99% 7,663 7,687 -24 100%

Viejas Grade Project Charge 1,581 1,591 -10 99% 1,586 1,591 -5 100%

Supp Debt Charge 4,505 4,534 -29 99% 4,519 4,533 -14 100%

Interest Income 79 15 64 527% 156 15 141 1,040%

Total Other Income 13,804 13,827 -23 100% 13,924 13,826 98 101%

Other Expense

Interest Expense 1,380 4,630 -3,250 30% 4,629 4,630 -1 100%

Total Other Expense 1,380 4,630 -3,250 30% 4,629 4,630 -1 100%

Net Other Income 12,424 9,197 3,227 135% 9,295 9,196 99 101%

Net Income -2,590 12,543 -15,133 -21% 15,069 12,122 2,947 124%

 Page 1 of 7
 Unaudited - No assurance is provided on these financial statements

18



 09/12/23  Descanso Community Water District

 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, & Change in Net Position
 July 2022 through June 2023

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Operating Revenues

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense

Operating Expenses

Water Treatment

Repairs and Maintenance

Transmission & Distribution

Depreciation

General & Administrative

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

Treatment Plant Project Charge

Viejas Grade Project Charge

Supp Debt Charge

Interest Income

Total Other Income

Other Expense

Interest Expense

Total Other Expense

Net Other Income

Net Income

Sep 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget Oct 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

42,144 45,015 -2,871 94% 42,937 44,958 -2,021 96%

42,144 45,015 -2,871 94% 42,937 44,958 -2,021 96%

42,144 45,015 -2,871 94% 42,937 44,958 -2,021 96%

2,186 1,292 894 169% 2,001 1,346 655 149%

0 1,039 -1,039 0% 170 3,311 -3,141 5%

885 1,467 -582 60% 587 1,478 -891 40%

26,220 26,990 -770 97% 26,220 26,989 -769 97%

5,869 5,869 0 100% 5,869 5,869 0 100%

2,787 3,692 -905 75% 4,678 5,191 -513 90%

37,947 40,349 -2,402 94% 39,525 44,184 -4,659 89%

4,197 4,666 -469 90% 3,412 774 2,638 441%

7,663 7,687 -24 100% 7,663 7,688 -25 100%

1,586 1,592 -6 100% 1,586 1,591 -5 100%

4,519 4,533 -14 100% 4,519 4,533 -14 100%

164 15 149 1,093% 206 15 191 1,373%

13,932 13,827 105 101% 13,974 13,827 147 101%

4,629 4,630 -1 100% 4,595 4,596 -1 100%

4,629 4,630 -1 100% 4,595 4,596 -1 100%

9,303 9,197 106 101% 9,379 9,231 148 102%

13,500 13,863 -363 97% 12,791 10,005 2,786 128%

 Page 2 of 7
 Unaudited - No assurance is provided on these financial statements

19



 09/12/23  Descanso Community Water District

 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, & Change in Net Position
 July 2022 through June 2023

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Operating Revenues

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense

Operating Expenses

Water Treatment

Repairs and Maintenance

Transmission & Distribution

Depreciation

General & Administrative

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

Treatment Plant Project Charge

Viejas Grade Project Charge

Supp Debt Charge

Interest Income

Total Other Income

Other Expense

Interest Expense

Total Other Expense

Net Other Income

Net Income

Nov 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget Dec 22 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

42,035 41,797 238 101% 39,454 42,588 -3,134 93%

42,035 41,797 238 101% 39,454 42,588 -3,134 93%

42,035 41,797 238 101% 39,454 42,588 -3,134 93%

2,131 1,552 579 137% 977 1,050 -73 93%

0 739 -739 0% 617 3,355 -2,738 18%

5,557 1,478 4,079 376% 893 1,478 -585 60%

26,224 26,990 -766 97% 26,224 26,989 -765 97%

5,858 5,858 0 100% 5,850 5,850 0 100%

4,337 3,592 745 121% 7,967 3,812 4,155 209%

44,107 40,209 3,898 110% 42,528 42,534 -6 100%

-2,072 1,588 -3,660 -130% -3,074 54 -3,128 -5,693%

7,663 7,687 -24 100% 7,639 7,687 -48 99%

1,586 1,591 -5 100% 1,581 1,592 -11 99%

4,519 4,533 -14 100% 4,505 4,533 -28 99%

103 15 88 687% 98 15 83 653%

13,871 13,826 45 100% 13,823 13,827 -4 100%

4,595 4,596 -1 100% 4,595 4,596 -1 100%

4,595 4,596 -1 100% 4,595 4,596 -1 100%

9,276 9,230 46 100% 9,228 9,231 -3 100%

7,204 10,818 -3,614 67% 6,154 9,285 -3,131 66%

 Page 3 of 7
 Unaudited - No assurance is provided on these financial statements

20



 09/12/23  Descanso Community Water District

 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, & Change in Net Position
 July 2022 through June 2023

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Operating Revenues

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense

Operating Expenses

Water Treatment

Repairs and Maintenance

Transmission & Distribution

Depreciation

General & Administrative

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

Treatment Plant Project Charge

Viejas Grade Project Charge

Supp Debt Charge

Interest Income

Total Other Income

Other Expense

Interest Expense

Total Other Expense

Net Other Income

Net Income

Jan 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget Feb 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

40,977 41,770 -793 98% 41,214 41,767 -553 99%

40,977 41,770 -793 98% 41,214 41,767 -553 99%

40,977 41,770 -793 98% 41,214 41,767 -553 99%

1,096 1,124 -28 98% 1,193 1,018 175 117%

1,210 622 588 195% 19,953 706 19,247 2,826%

36,337 1,478 34,859 2,459% 858 1,478 -620 58%

26,226 26,990 -764 97% 26,786 26,989 -203 99%

5,850 5,850 0 100% 5,850 5,850 0 100%

4,355 3,591 764 121% 4,434 3,592 842 123%

75,074 39,655 35,419 189% 59,074 39,633 19,441 149%

-34,097 2,115 -36,212 -1,612% -17,860 2,134 -19,994 -837%

7,639 7,687 -48 99% 7,639 7,688 -49 99%

1,581 1,591 -10 99% 1,581 1,591 -10 99%

4,505 4,533 -28 99% 4,505 4,533 -28 99%

219 15 204 1,460% 215 15 200 1,433%

13,944 13,826 118 101% 13,940 13,827 113 101%

1,443 4,584 -3,141 31% 4,584 4,584 0 100%

1,443 4,584 -3,141 31% 4,584 4,584 0 100%

12,501 9,242 3,259 135% 9,356 9,243 113 101%

-21,596 11,357 -32,953 -190% -8,504 11,377 -19,881 -75%

 Page 4 of 7
 Unaudited - No assurance is provided on these financial statements

21



 09/12/23  Descanso Community Water District

 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, & Change in Net Position
 July 2022 through June 2023

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Operating Revenues

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense

Operating Expenses

Water Treatment

Repairs and Maintenance

Transmission & Distribution

Depreciation

General & Administrative

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

Treatment Plant Project Charge

Viejas Grade Project Charge

Supp Debt Charge

Interest Income

Total Other Income

Other Expense

Interest Expense

Total Other Expense

Net Other Income

Net Income

Mar 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget Apr 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

41,014 41,314 -300 99% 39,971 41,314 -1,343 97%

41,014 41,314 -300 99% 39,971 41,314 -1,343 97%

41,014 41,314 -300 99% 39,971 41,314 -1,343 97%

1,085 1,166 -81 93% 798 1,117 -319 71%

610 802 -192 76% 160 3,312 -3,152 5%

745 1,478 -733 50% 824 1,478 -654 56%

27,731 26,990 741 103% 26,228 26,989 -761 97%

5,850 5,850 0 100% 5,850 5,850 0 100%

9,919 5,892 4,027 168% 4,554 3,591 963 127%

45,940 42,178 3,762 109% 38,414 42,337 -3,923 91%

-4,926 -864 -4,062 570% 1,557 -1,023 2,580 -152%

7,639 7,687 -48 99% 7,639 7,687 -48 99%

1,581 1,592 -11 99% 1,581 1,591 -10 99%

4,505 4,533 -28 99% 4,505 4,533 -28 99%

236 15 221 1,573% 382 15 367 2,547%

13,961 13,827 134 101% 14,107 13,826 281 102%

4,584 4,584 0 100% 4,522 4,550 -28 99%

4,584 4,584 0 100% 4,522 4,550 -28 99%

9,377 9,243 134 101% 9,585 9,276 309 103%

4,451 8,379 -3,928 53% 11,142 8,253 2,889 135%

 Page 5 of 7
 Unaudited - No assurance is provided on these financial statements

22



 09/12/23  Descanso Community Water District

 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, & Change in Net Position
 July 2022 through June 2023

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Operating Revenues

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense

Operating Expenses

Water Treatment

Repairs and Maintenance

Transmission & Distribution

Depreciation

General & Administrative

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

Treatment Plant Project Charge

Viejas Grade Project Charge

Supp Debt Charge

Interest Income

Total Other Income

Other Expense

Interest Expense

Total Other Expense

Net Other Income

Net Income

May 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget Jun 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

42,222 43,953 -1,731 96% 41,736 43,950 -2,214 95%

42,222 43,953 -1,731 96% 41,736 43,950 -2,214 95%

42,222 43,953 -1,731 96% 41,736 43,950 -2,214 95%

1,076 1,203 -127 89% 1,785 1,497 288 119%

385 770 -385 50% 360 3,604 -3,244 10%

862 1,478 -616 58% 969 1,478 -509 66%

26,226 26,989 -763 97% 26,228 26,989 -761 97%

5,850 5,850 0 100% 0 5,850 -5,850 0%

4,601 3,592 1,009 128% 4,976 10,042 -5,066 50%

39,000 39,882 -882 98% 34,318 49,460 -15,142 69%

3,222 4,071 -849 79% 7,418 -5,510 12,928 -135%

7,639 7,687 -48 99% 7,615 7,688 -73 99%

1,581 1,591 -10 99% 1,576 1,592 -16 99%

4,505 4,533 -28 99% 4,490 4,533 -43 99%

899 15 884 5,993% 1,145 15 1,130 7,633%

14,624 13,826 798 106% 14,826 13,828 998 107%

4,102 4,550 -448 90% 0 4,550 -4,550 0%

4,102 4,550 -448 90% 0 4,550 -4,550 0%

10,522 9,276 1,246 113% 14,826 9,278 5,548 160%

13,744 13,347 397 103% 22,244 3,768 18,476 590%

 Page 6 of 7
 Unaudited - No assurance is provided on these financial statements

23



 09/12/23  Descanso Community Water District

 Statement of Revenues, Expenses, & Change in Net Position
 July 2022 through June 2023

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Operating Revenues

Total Income

Gross Profit

Expense

Operating Expenses

Water Treatment

Repairs and Maintenance

Transmission & Distribution

Depreciation

General & Administrative

Total Expense

Net Ordinary Income

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

Treatment Plant Project Charge

Viejas Grade Project Charge

Supp Debt Charge

Interest Income

Total Other Income

Other Expense

Interest Expense

Total Other Expense

Net Other Income

Net Income

TOTAL

Jul '22 - Jun 23 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

504,156 520,460 -16,304 97%

504,156 520,460 -16,304 97%

504,156 520,460 -16,304 97%

18,807 15,550 3,257 121%

43,418 25,070 18,348 173%

53,039 17,703 35,336 300%

316,753 323,873 -7,120 98%

64,434 70,284 -5,850 92%

59,168 53,703 5,465 110%

555,619 506,183 49,436 110%

-51,463 14,277 -65,740 -360%

91,740 92,247 -507 99%

18,987 19,096 -109 99%

54,101 54,397 -296 99%

3,902 180 3,722 2,168%

168,730 165,920 2,810 102%

43,658 55,080 -11,422 79%

43,658 55,080 -11,422 79%

125,072 110,840 14,232 113%

73,609 125,117 -51,508 59%

 Page 7 of 7
 Unaudited - No assurance is provided on these financial statements

24



Apr - Jun 23

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income 47,133
Adjustments to reconcile Net Income
to net cash provided by operations:

Customer Accounts Receivable:Customer Accounts Receivable -5,108
Customer Accounts Receivable:Customer Accounts Receivable:Customer Prepayments -1,289
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -4,691
Materials and Supplies:Plant Material 557
Prepayments:G&A 89
Prepayments:Taxes/Fees 270
Accts Pay - General 7,702
Accts Pay - Accrued 692
Interest Accrued:Int Accr-LTD-Outside -145

Net cash provided by Operating Activities 45,208

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Accumulated Depreciation:Utility Plant-Acc Depr 11,699
Uncapitalized Fixed Assets -WIP -414
Uncapitalized Fixed Assets -WIP:Well #5-Fe/Mn Plant:Task 08 ($232209) -6,546
Uncapitalized Fixed Assets -WIP:Well #6-Fe/Mn Plant:Task 08 ($232209) -6,546

Net cash provided by Investing Activities -1,805

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Current Portion of LTD:Loan Payable - Union Bank of Ca 400
Long-Term Debt:Loan Payable - UBOC 4/2038 -9,000
Long-Term Debt:Loan Costs USDA Series 2021 -366

Net cash provided by Financing Activities -8,966

Net cash increase for period 34,436

Cash at beginning of period 831,461

Cash at end of period 865,897

Descanso Community Water District

09/12/23 Statement of Cash Flows
April through June 2023

Unaudited - No assurance is provided on these financial statements

Page 1

25



Jul '22 - Jun 23

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income 73,609
Adjustments to reconcile Net Income
to net cash provided by operations:

Customer Accounts Receivable:Customer Accounts Receivable -50,196
Customer Accounts Receivable:Customer Accounts Receivable:Customer Prepayments 973
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -2,891
Security Deposits:Office 28857B Old Hwy 80 -2,100
Materials and Supplies:Plant Material 557
Prepayments:G&A -17
Prepayments:Taxes/Fees -10
Accts Pay - General -10,096
Accts Pay - Accrued 692
Interest Accrued:Int Accr-LTD-Outside -5,034
Current Portion of LTD:USDA Series 2021A Short Term 1,000
Current Portion of LTD:USDA Series 2021B Short Term 1,000

Net cash provided by Operating Activities 7,486

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Accumulated Depreciation:Utility Plant-Acc Depr 64,431
Uncapitalized Fixed Assets -WIP -1,655
Uncapitalized Fixed Assets -WIP:Well #5-Fe/Mn Plant:Task 08 ($232209) -20,207
Uncapitalized Fixed Assets -WIP:Well #6-Fe/Mn Plant:Task 08 ($232209) -20,208

Net cash provided by Investing Activities 22,361

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Current Portion of LTD:Loan Payable - Union Bank of Ca 800
Current Portion of LTD:Loan Payable - SD County 138
Long-Term Debt:Loan Payable - UBOC 4/2038 -17,800
Long-Term Debt:Loan Payable-SD County 1/2041 -4,323
Long-Term Debt:USDA Series 2021A Long Term -24,000
Long-Term Debt:USDA Series 2021B Long Term -7,000

Net cash provided by Financing Activities -52,185

Net cash increase for period -22,337

Cash at beginning of period 888,234

Cash at end of period 865,897

Descanso Community Water District

09/12/23 Statement of Cash Flows
July 2022 through June 2023

Unaudited - No assurance is provided on these financial statements

Page 1

26



DCWD Cash Flow Balances

Unaudited - No assurance is provided on these financial statements

 -

 100,000

 200,000

 300,000

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

 700,000

 800,000

 900,000

 1,000,000

General

Emer/Cap Imp

Other

Total

27



 

 

Item 7 

DCWD FINANCIAL AUDIT OF 2021-22:  
 
The District’s Auditor or his representative will present the results of the 2022-23 Financial 
Audit and the Board will take appropriate action. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



 

 

Item 8 

RFP/RFQ FOR 2022-2023 DCWD FINANCIAL AUDIT SERVICES:  

The Board will review proposal submitted by Nigro and Nigro for the proposed RFP/RFQ for 
2022-23 Financial Audit Services and beyond and take appropriate action. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes: 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

54



 

 

 

 

 

September 20, 2023 

 
Board of Directors 
Descanso Community Water District 
24680 Viejas Grande Rd, Suite A610 
Descanso, CA 91916 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide Descanso Community Water 
District (District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023.  

Audit	Scope	and	Objectives	

We will audit the governmental activities and each major fund of the District, as of June 30, 2023 and for the 
year then ended and the related notes, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents of the financial statements. 

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and 
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America (GAAS)	and, if applicable, in accordance with Government	Auditing	Standards, 
and/or any state or regulatory audit requirements will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  

Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements.  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, (U.S. GAAP,) as promulgated by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) require that certain required supplementary information 
(RSI) such as management's discussion and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the GASB, who considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  

As part of our engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information 
(RSI) in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, (U.S. GAAS). 
These limited procedures will consist primarily of inquiries of management regarding their methods of 
measurement and presentation, and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses 
to our inquiries. We will not express an opinion or provide any form of assurance on the RSI. The following RSI 
is required by U.S. GAAP. This RSI will be subjected to certain limited procedures but will not be audited: 

1. Management's Discussion and Analysis 
 

 

  

55



Page 2 of 8 
 

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on internal control related to the financial 
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government	
Auditing	 Standards. The report on internal control and on compliance and other matters will include a 
paragraph that states (1) that the purpose of the report is solely to describe the scope of testing of internal 
control and compliance, and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity’s internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government	Auditing	Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. 
The paragraph will also state that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.  If during our audit we 
become aware that the District is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this 
engagement, we will communicate to management and those charged with governance that an audit in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards for financial audits contained in 
Government	Auditing	Standards may not satisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements. 

Auditor	Responsibilities	

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and in accordance with Government	Auditing	Standards. As 
part of an audit in accordance with GAAS and in accordance with Government	Auditing	Standards, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the District's internal control. However, we will communicate to you in writing 
concerning any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit 
of the financial statements that we have identified during the audit. 
 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

4. Conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered in 
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going concern 
for a reasonable period of time. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, an 
unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even though the audit is 
properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS and in accordance with Government	 Auditing	
Standards. 

Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend to any other 
periods. 

Compliance	with	Laws	and	Regulations	

As previously discussed, as part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial 
statements are free of material misstatement, we will perform tests of the District's compliance with the 
provisions of applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and agreements. However, the objective of our audit will 
not be to provide an opinion on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion. 

56



Page 3 of 8 
 

Management	Responsibilities	
	
Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management acknowledge and understand that they have 
responsibility: 
 

a) For the preparation and fair presentation of the basic financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 

b) For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of basic financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to error, fraudulent financial reporting, misappropriation of assets, or violations of laws, governmental 
regulations, grant agreements, or contractual agreements; and 

c) To provide us with: 
i. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation 

and fair presentation of the basic financial statements such as records, documentation, and 
other matters; 

ii. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit; 
iii. Unrestricted access to persons within the District from whom we determine it necessary to 

obtain audit evidence. 
iv. A written acknowledgement of all the documents that management expects to issue that will 

be included in the annual report and the planned timing and method of issuance of that annual 
report; and  

v. A final version of the annual report (including all the documents that, together, comprise the 
annual report) in a timely manner prior to the date of the auditor's report. 

d) For including the auditor's report in any document containing basic financial statements that indicates 
that such basic financial statements have been audited by us; 

e) For identifying and ensuring that the District complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its 
activities; 

f) For adjusting the basic financial statements to correct material misstatements and confirming to us in 
the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated 
by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the current year period(s) under audit are 
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the basic financial statements as a whole; and 

g) For acceptance of nonattest services, including identifying the proper party to oversee nonattest work; 
h) For maintaining adequate records, selecting and applying accounting principles, and safeguarding 

assets; 
i) For informing us of any known or suspected fraud affecting the District involving management, 

employees with significant role in internal control and others where fraud could have a material effect 
on the financials; and 

j) For the accuracy and completeness of all information provided. 
 
With regard to the supplementary information referred to above, you acknowledge and understand your 
responsibility:  

a) for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable criteria;  
b) to provide us with the appropriate written representations regarding supplementary information;  
c) to include our report on the supplementary information in any document that contains the 

supplementary information and that indicates that we have reported on such supplementary 
information; and  

d) to present the supplementary information with the audited basic financial statements, or if the 
supplementary information will not be presented with the audited basic financial statements, to make 
the audited basic financial statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary 
information no later than the date of issuance by you of the supplementary information and our report 
thereon. 

 
As part of our audit process, we will request from management, written confirmation concerning 
representations made to us in connection with the audit. 
	 	

57



Page 4 of 8 
 

Nonattest	Services	
	
With respect to any nonattest services we perform, 

At the end of the year, we agree to perform the following: 

a) Propose adjusting or correcting journal entries detected during the audit, if applicable, to be reviewed 
and approved by the District's management. 

b) Word process the financial statements using information provided by management. 

We will not assume management responsibilities on behalf of the District. However, we will provide advice and 
recommendations to assist management of the District in performing its responsibilities. 

The District's management is responsible for:  

a) making all management decisions and performing all management functions;  
b) assigning a competent individual to oversee the services;  
c) evaluating the adequacy of the services performed;  
d) evaluating and accepting responsibility for the results of the services performed; and  
e) establishing and maintaining internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities. 

Our responsibilities and limitations of the nonattest services are as follows: 

a) We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards 
b) The nonattest services are limited to the services previously outlined. Our firm, in its sole professional 

judgment, reserves the right to refuse to do any procedure or take any action that could be construed 
as making management decisions or assuming management responsibilities, including determining 
account coding and approving journal entries. Our firm will advise the District with regard to tax 
positions taken in the preparation of the tax return, but the District must make all decisions with 
regard to those matters. 

Reporting	
 
We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the District's basic financial statements. Our 
report will be addressed to the Board of Directors of the District. Circumstances may arise in which our report 
may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of 
these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add an emphasis-of-matter or other-
matter paragraph(s) to our auditor's report, or if necessary, withdraw from the engagement. If our opinions on 
the basic financial statements are other than unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. If, 
for any reason, we are unable to complete the audit or are unable to form or have not formed opinions, we may 
decline to express opinions or to issue a report as a result of this engagement. 
 
In accordance with the requirements of Government Auditing Standards, we will also issue a written report 
describing the scope of our testing over internal control over financial reporting and over compliance with 
laws, regulations, and provisions of grants and contracts, including the results of that testing. However, 
providing an opinion on internal control and compliance will not be an objective of the audit and, therefore, no 
such opinion will be expressed.  
 
Preparation	of	State	Controller	Report	
Our	Responsibilities	
	
The objective of our engagement is to prepare the annual Financial Transactions Report (FTR) in accordance 
with the California State Controller's Office Instructions based on information provided by you. We will conduct 
our engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review Services (SSARSs) 
promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA and comply with the AICPA's 
Code of Professional Conduct, including the ethical principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence, 
and due care. 

58



Page 5 of 8 
 

We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you will provide to 
us for the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing an opinion or a conclusion. 
Accordingly, we will not express an opinion or a conclusion or provide any assurance on the FTR. 
 
Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any FTR misstatements, including those caused 
by fraud or error, or to identify or disclose any wrongdoing within the District or noncompliance with laws and 
regulations. 
	
Management	Responsibilities	
	
The engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that management acknowledges and understands 
that our role is to prepare the FTR in accordance with the State Controller's Office Instructions. Management 
has the following overall responsibilities that are fundamental to our undertaking the engagement to prepare 
your FTR in accordance with SSARSs: 
 

a) The selection of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as the 
financial reporting framework to be applied in the preparation of the financial statements 

b) The design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error 

c) The prevention and detection of fraud 
d) To ensure that the District complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities 
e) The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other information, 

including significant judgments, you provide to us for the engagement to prepare financial statements 
f) To provide us with: 

i. Documentation, and other related information that is relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements, 

ii. Additional information that may be requested for the purpose of the preparation of the 
financial statements, and 

iii. Unrestricted access to persons of whom we determine necessary to communicate. 
 
As part of our engagement, we will issue a disclaimer that will state that the FTR were not subjected to an audit, 
review, or compilation engagement by us and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor 
provide any assurance on them. 
 
Scheduling	
	
Scheduling of the Audit Final-Fieldwork Dates will be based on an agreeable timetable with the District. We ask 
that the District prepare a completed and finalized Trial Balance and General Ledger in Excel form as of the 
June 30, 2023 date with all Balance Sheet accounts properly reconciled in Excel or PDF form and uploaded into 
the Suralink Portal System by the date scheduled. Failure to complete all the above noted items by the date 
scheduled will result in a $1,000 extra fee charge and postponement of the audit to a later date. A 30-day notice 
before the initial scheduled Audit Final-Fieldwork date is required to change the date and avoid the extra 
$1,000 fee. However, if a December or January date is chosen for the re-scheduled Audit Final-Fieldwork date, 
the $1,000 fee will still apply to cover Overtime costs incurred during those months and will only guarantee 
the audit will be completed by January 31, 2024. 

 
	 	

59



Page 6 of 8 
 

Engagement	Fees	
 
Our fixed fees for the services previously outlined will be as follows: 
 

Financial Statements and Auditor Reports $12,000 
Preparation of the State Controller’s Report 500 

Total	 $12,500	
 

If significant changes occur in the District’s audit requirements with the implementation of new Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Standards, Government Auditing Standards or the Audit and Accounting 
Guide for State and Local Governments issued by the AICPA for attest and/or nonattest services, this may 
render additional services needed which may increase the above noted fixed fee. 

Our invoices for these fees will be rendered each month as work progresses and are payable on presentation. 
In accordance with our firm policies, work may be suspended if the District’s account becomes 60 days or more 
overdue and may not be resumed until the District’s account is paid in full. If we elect to terminate our services 
for nonpayment, our engagement will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of 
termination, even if we have not completed our report. The District will be obligated to compensate us for all 
time expended and to reimburse us for all out-of-pocket costs through the date of termination. The above fee 
is based on anticipated cooperation from District personnel and the assumption that unexpected circumstances 
will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with 
management and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs. 

Additionally, our fees are dependent on the availability, quality, and completeness of the District's records and, 
where applicable, upon the District's personnel providing the level of assistance identified in the "prepared by 
client" request list distributed at the end of our planning work (e.g., District employees preparing confirmations 
and schedules we request, locating documents selected by us for testing, etc.). 

We will schedule the engagement based in part on deadlines, working conditions, and the availability of District 
key personnel. We will plan the engagement based on the assumption that District personnel will cooperate 
and provide assistance by performing tasks such as preparing requested schedules, retrieving supporting 
documents, and preparing confirmations. If, for whatever reason, District personnel are unavailable to provide 
the necessary assistance in a timely manner, it may substantially increase the work we have to do to complete 
the engagement within the established deadlines, resulting in an increase in fees over our original fee estimate. 

If circumstances occur related to the condition of District records, the availability of sufficient, appropriate 
audit evidence, or the existence of a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statements caused 
by error, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which in our professional judgment 
prevent us from completing the audit or forming an opinion on the financial statements, we retain the right to 
take any course of action permitted by professional standards, including declining to express an opinion or 
issue a report, or withdrawing from the engagement. 

Should our assumptions with respect to these matters be incorrect, or should the condition of the records, 
degree of cooperation, or other matters beyond our reasonable control require additional commitments by us 
beyond those upon which our estimated fees are based, we may adjust our fees and planned completion dates. 
If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss it with management and arrive at a new fee estimate 
as soon as reasonably practicable. 

 
	 	

60



Page 7 of 8 
 

Other	Engagement	Matters	
	
During the course of the engagement, we may communicate with you or your personnel via fax or e-mail, and 
you should be aware that communication in those mediums contains a risk of misdirected or intercepted 
communications. 
 
Government Auditing Standards require that we document an assessment of the skills, knowledge, and 
experience of management, should we participate in any form of preparation of the basic financial statements 
and related schedules or disclosures as these actions are deemed a non-audit service. 
 
Paul	J	Kaymark,	CPA	is the engagement partner responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the 
report. 
 
During the course of the audit we may observe opportunities for economy in, or improved controls over, your 
operations. We will bring such matters to the attention of the appropriate level of management, either orally 
or in writing. 
 
You agree to inform us of facts that may affect the basic financial statements of which you may become aware 
during the period from the date of the auditor's report to the date the financial statements are issued. 
 
We agree to retain our audit documentation or work papers for a period of at least seven years from the date 
of our report. 
 
The audit documentation for this engagement is the property of Nigro & Nigro, PC and constitutes confidential 
information. However, we may be requested to make certain audit documentation available to regulatory 
agencies pursuant to authority given to it by law or regulation, or to peer reviewers. If requested, access to such 
audit documentation will be provided under the supervision of Nigro & Nigro, PC's personnel. Furthermore, 
upon request, we may provide copies of selected audit documentation to regulatory agencies. The regulatory 
agencies may intend, or decide, to distribute the copies of information contained therein to others, including 
other governmental agencies. We will notify the District of any such request. 
 
Conflict	Resolution	

Should any litigation or adverse action (such as audits by outside governmental agencies and/or threatened 
litigation, etc.), by third parties arise against the District or the board of directors subsequent to this 
engagement, which results in the subpoena of documents from Nigro & Nigro, PC and/or requires additional 
assistance from us to provide information, depositions or testimony, the District hereby agrees to compensate 
Nigro & Nigro, PC (at our standard hourly rates) for additional time charges and other costs (copies, travel, 
etc.), and to indemnify us for any attorney’s fees to represent Nigro & Nigro, PC. 

If any dispute arises among the parties hereto, the parties agree to first try in good faith to settle the dispute by 
mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association under its applicable rules for resolving 
professional accounting and related services disputes before resorting to litigation. The costs of any mediation 
proceeding shall be shared equally by all parties. 

The District and Nigro & Nigro, PC both agree that any dispute over fees charged by the auditor to the District 
will be submitted for resolution by arbitration in accordance with the applicable rules for resolving 
professional accounting and related services disputes of the American Arbitration Association, except that 
under all circumstances the arbitrator must follow the laws of California.  Such arbitration shall be binding and 
final. IN	AGREEING	TO	ARBITRATION,	WE	BOTH	ACKNOWLEDGE	THAT	IN	THE	EVENT	OF	A	DISPUTE	
OVER	 FEES	CHARGED	BY	THE	ACCOUNTANT,	 EACH	OF	US	 IS	GIVING	UP	THE	RIGHT	TO	HAVE	THE	
DISPUTE	DECIDED	IN	A	COURT	OF	LAW	BEFORE	A	JUDGE	OR	JURY	AND	INSTEAD	WE	ARE	ACCEPTING	
THE	 USE	 OF	 ARBITRATION	 FOR	 RESOLUTION. The prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in connection with the arbitration of the dispute in an amount to 
be determined by the arbitrator. 

61



Page 8 of 8 
 

Conclusion	
 
At the conclusion of our audit engagement, we will communicate to the Board of Directors the following 
significant findings from the audit: 
 

a) Our view about the qualitative aspects of the District's significant accounting practices; 
b) Significant difficulties, if any, encountered during the audit; 
c) Uncorrected misstatements, other than those we believe are trivial, if any; 
d) Disagreements with management, if any; 
e) Other findings or issues, if any, arising from the audit that are, in our professional judgment, significant 

and relevant to those charged with governance regarding their oversight of the financial reporting 
process; 

f) Material, corrected misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our 
audit procedures; 

g) Representations we requested from management; 
h) Management's consultations with other accountants, if any; and 
i) Significant issues, if any, arising from the audit that were discussed, or the subject of correspondence, 

with management. 
 
Please sign and return the attached copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and agreement with, 
the arrangements for our audit of the basic financial statements including our respective responsibilities. 
 
Enclosed, as required by Government	Auditing	Standards,	is a copy of the report on the most recent peer review 
of our firm. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to provide these services and believe this letter accurately summarizes the 
significant terms of our engagement. 
 
Very truly yours, 

 
Nigro & Nigro, PC 

The services and arrangements described in this letter are in accordance with our understanding and are 
acceptable to us. 
 

Management signature:    
 
Title:    
 
Date:    

 

Governance signature:    
 
Title:    
 
Date:    

 

62



 

 

Item 9 

AUDIT PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT:  

The Board will review the Audit Professional Services Agreement and take appropriate action. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes: 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

63



- 1 - 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(Auditing Services) 

This Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made on this 20th day of September, 2023 
(“Effective Date”) by and between DESCANSO COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT (“DESCANSO”) and NIGRO 
AND NIGRO, PC (“CONTRACTOR”), an independent contractor, collectively referred to herein as “parties” 
or individually as “party,” to furnish certain services as provided in this Agreement and upon the following 
terms and conditions. 

ARTICLE 1 
TERM OF AGREEMENT 

1.01 The term of this Agreement shall commence on September 20, 2023 and will continue in effect 
through completion of the Services described in Attachment A – Scope of Work (“Attachment A”) for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2025, with an option to extend 2 more years until June 30, 2027 and for , or 
until terminated as provided under Article 7, whichever occurs first.  Attachment A sets forth further 
instructions regarding required timelines for Services performed under this Agreement.  Time is of the 
essence for each and every provision of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 2 
SCOPE OF WORK 

Specific Services 

2.01 CONTRACTOR shall perform the services within the scope described in Attachment A and as  
authorized by DESCANSO (the “Services”).  CONTRACTOR will provide DESCANSO with periodic reports 
regarding the progress of Services performed, as described in Attachment A and at DESCANSO’s request.  
Any changes to the scope of work or timeframes identified in Attachment A must be authorized by 
DESCANSO in writing and shall be set forth as an amendment to this Agreement. 

2.02 CONTRACTOR shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the above-described 
Services.  CONTRACTOR shall supply all labor, tools, materials, and equipment required to perform the 
Services under this Agreement.   

Standard of Performance 

2.03 CONTRACTOR shall perform the Services required hereunder in accordance with the prevailing 
standard of care by exercising the skill and ability customarily exercised by reputable members of 
CONTRACTOR’s profession providing the same or similar services in the State of California. While 
exercising its professional skill and expertise, CONTRACTOR shall use reasonable diligence and best 
judgment, and shall perform the Services required hereunder in the best interests of DESCANSO.  
Acceptance by DESCANSO of reports, and incidental professional work or materials furnished hereunder, 
shall not in any way relieve CONTRACTOR of responsibility for the adequacy of its work. 

Personnel 

2.04 DESCANSO has a primary interest in maintaining the individual services of the following key 
project team members: 

64



- 2 - 

1. Paul Kaymark, CPA 

2. Anabel Cruz, CPA 

2.05 No member of the project team shall be removed from the project team or reassigned by 
CONTRACTOR without prior approval of DESCANSO.  CONTRACTOR shall immediately inform DESCANSO, 
in writing, should any of the key members become unavailable.  CONTRACTOR must submit the 
credentials for substitutes for key project members to DESCANSO for review and approval.  At the 
discretion of DESCANSO, an interview may be required prior to approval of a substitute key project 
member.    

ARTICLE 3 
COMPENSATION 

Compensation for Work Performed Under This Agreement 

3.01 Compensation payable to CONTRACTOR for Services performed under this Agreement shall be on 
a time and materials basis, as described in Attachment A, not to exceed Twelve thousand five hundred 
Dollars ($ 12,500) per fiscal year or Thirty seven thousand five hundred Dollars ($37,500) in the aggregate, 
with fees for two optional fiscal years (2026 and 2027) accrued at the same rate.  This amount shall not 
be exceeded unless agreed upon through an amendment to this Agreement executed by both parties.  
Such amendment shall identify any change in compensation as a result of the change in scope of work.  
The parties agree that this compensation was developed in accordance with the customary and prevailing 
compensation level in the community and surrounding area for comparable services.  The parties agreed 
to this amount through an arm’s length negotiation between the parties. 

Payment of Expenses and Monthly Invoices 

3.02 DESCANSO will reimburse CONTRACTOR for all reasonable expenses incurred in performing 
Services under this Agreement as the work progresses, provided that such reasonable expenses shall be 
included in and subject to the maximum compensation amount stated above in this Article.  CONTRACTOR 
shall submit monthly invoices to DESCANSO, which shall include a brief narrative description of the work 
performed, as well as detailed time expenditures on a task-by-task basis pursuant to Attachment A.  The 
term “expenses” means telephone bills, and federal express charges, mailing charges and any other pre-
approved expenses by DESCANSO.  CONTRACTOR will provide DESCANSO with receipts and proof of 
payment for all expenses.  DESCANSO shall make payment to CONTRACTOR within forty-five (45) days of 
receipt of an approved invoice.   

3.03 DESCANSO shall have the right to withhold payment from CONTRACTOR for any unsatisfactory 
Services until such time service is performed satisfactorily or as otherwise provided for in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 4 
RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

Independent Contractor 

4.01 It is expressly understood and agreed that CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and its 
employees are not employees of DESCANSO while engaged in carrying out this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR 
is free from the control and direction of DESCANSO in connection with the performance of the work, 

65



- 3 - 

CONTRACTOR performs work that is outside the usual course of DESCANSO business, and CONTRACTOR 
is customarily engaged in an independently established trade, occupation, or business of the same nature 
as that involved in the work performed. The parties agree that no work, act, commission, or omission of 
CONTRACTOR or its employee(s) pursuant to this Agreement shall be construed to make CONTRACTOR or 
its employee(s) the agent, employee, or servant of DESCANSO.  CONTRACTOR and its employee(s) are not 
entitled to receive from DESCANSO vacation pay, sick leave, retirement benefits, Social Security, workers’ 
compensation, disability benefits, unemployment benefits, or any other employee benefit of any kind.  
CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for paying all federal and state employment and income taxes, 
for carrying workers’ compensation insurance, and for otherwise complying with all other employment 
law requirements with respect to CONTRACTOR and its employee(s). 

4.02 To the maximum extent allowable by law, CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, defend and hold  
DESCANSO harmless from any and all liability, damages, or losses (including attorneys’ fees, costs, 
penalties, and fines) that DESCANSO suffers as a result of (a) CONTRACTOR’s failure to meet its obligations 
under this Article, or (b) a third party’s designation of CONTRACTOR or its employee(s) as an employee of 
DESCANSO, regardless of any actual or alleged negligence by DESCANSO. 

Non-Exclusive Relationship   

4.03 The parties acknowledge that their relationship is non-exclusive and CONTRACTOR may perform 
or engage in any activity not inconsistent with this Agreement, including performing services for, or 
contracting with, other clients, persons, or companies as CONTRACTOR sees fit.  DESCANSO reserves the 
right to employ other contractors in connection with the Services described in Attachment A.   

ARTICLE 5 
OBLIGATIONS OF CONTRACTOR 

Compliance with Laws/Rules 

5.01 In performing the Services specified in this Agreement, CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all  
applicable laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances, whether federal, state, or local, and any and all 
applicable DESCANSO policies, procedures, departmental rules, and other directives provided by 
DESCANSO to CONTRACTOR, including, but not limited to, any Contractor Safety Policies and Procedures.  
Any changes to DESCANSO policies and procedures that relate to CONTRACTOR will be provided to 
CONTRACTOR in writing.  CONTRACTOR agrees that, prior to entering into this Agreement, it has reviewed 
such policies, procedures, rules, and directives, the contents of which CONTRACTOR will be deemed to 
have knowledge. 

5.02 CONTRACTOR shall ensure that any report generated under this Agreement complies with 
California Government Code section 7550.   

Indemnity, Hold Harmless, and Defense 

5.03 To the maximum extent allowable by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend, and hold  
harmless DESCANSO and its officials, officers, directors, employees, agents and volunteers (collectively 
referred to as the “Indemnified Parties”) against all claims, demands, losses, costs, expenses, obligations, 
liabilities, damages, recoveries, and deficiencies, including interest, penalties, attorneys’ fees, and costs 
(collectively referred to as “Liabilities”) that such entities or persons may incur that pertain to, arise out 
of, or relate to CONTRACTOR’s performance or obligations under this Agreement, or to CONTRACTOR’s 

66



- 4 - 

negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct, or a breach by CONTRACTOR of any representation or 
agreement contained in this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR’s obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless DESCANSO shall extend to the acts or omissions, either directly or indirectly, by CONTRACTOR’s 
officers, officials, directors, employees, subcontractors, agents, representatives, volunteers, successors, 
assigns, or anyone for whom CONTRACTOR is legally responsible.  CONTRACTOR’s obligations to 
indemnify, defend, and hold DESCANSO harmless against any Liabilities shall apply regardless of any 
negligence of Indemnified Parties, except to the extent caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct 
of the Indemnified Parties.   

5.03.1 CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with and do whatever is necessary to protect Indemnified Parties 
from any such Liabilities. 

5.03.2 CONTRACTOR shall defend Indemnified Parties, at CONTRACTOR’s own cost, expense and risk, 
from any and all such aforesaid Liabilities asserted in claims, demands, actions, causes of action, 
arbitration, mediations or other proceedings of any kind that may be  brought or instituted against 
Indemnified Parties.  CONTRACTOR and Indemnified Parties shall be jointly represented by legal counsel, 
unless there is a conflict of interest, and CONTRACTOR shall pay Indemnified Parties’ reasonable 
attorneys’ fees and costs as they are incurred.  Indemnified Parties shall be consulted regarding, and shall 
approve, the selection of legal counsel.  Should separate legal counsel be necessary for Indemnified 
Parties, as determined by DESCANSO, CONTRACTOR shall pay for the reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs 
including expert witness fees, as such fees and costs are incurred and within thirty (30) days of receipt of 
an invoice, for Indemnified Parties’ legal counsel in addition to CONTRACTOR’s own legal fees and costs.  
In all circumstances, Indemnified Parties reserve the right to retain their own attorneys.  CONTRACTOR 
shall not agree without Indemnified Parties’ prior written consent to any settlement on Indemnified 
Parties’ behalf. 

5.03.3 If CONTRACTOR is obligated to defend Indemnified Parties pursuant to this Article 5 and fails to 
do so after reasonable notice from DESCANSO, Indemnified Parties may defend themselves and/or settle 
such claims, suit or assertion, and CONTRACTOR shall pay to Indemnified Parties any and all Liabilities 
incurred in relation to Indemnified Parties’ defense and/or settlement of such proceeding. 

5.03.4 CONTRACTOR shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, liability, or decree that may be 
awarded, imposed, or rendered against Indemnified Parties as a result of any claims, demands, suits, 
actions, causes of action, arbitrations, mediations, or other proceedings whether legal, administrative or 
otherwise, including any settlement related thereto. 

5.03.5 CONTRACTOR’s obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold DESCANSO harmless against all 
Liabilities shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, 
compensation, or benefits payable by or for CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, supplier, or other person under 
workers’ compensation acts, disability acts or other employee acts or the insurance required by this 
Agreement.  CONTRACTOR’s obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold DESCANSO harmless against all 
Liabilities shall not be restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by CONTRACTOR or Indemnified 
Parties.   Provision of insurance coverage as required by this Agreement shall not affect CONTRACTOR’s 
indemnity obligations. 

5.03.6 CONTRACTOR’s indemnification, hold harmless, and defense obligation shall survive the 
termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

67



- 5 - 

Notice of and Participation in Third Party Claims   

5.04 CONTRACTOR shall give DESCANSO written notice of any claim or liability asserted by a third 
party that arises from or relates to the Work performed under this Agreement (“Third-Party Claim”), as 
soon as possible upon the receipt of information of any possible Third-Party Claim or of the 
commencement of any Third-Party Claim. CONTRACTOR shall not oppose any attempt by DESCANSO to 
intervene or otherwise participate in any such Third-Party Claim. CONTRACTOR shall not settle any Third-
Party Claim covered by this Section unless it has obtained the prior written consent of DESCANSO, which 
consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. DESCANSO shall have no liability 
under this Section for any Third-Party Claim for which such notice is not provided or is not provided in a 
timely manner, including no liability for contribution, indemnification, reimbursement or penalties.  
CONTRACTOR’s obligations hereunder shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

Insurance    

5.05 CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain in full force and effect for the duration of this 
Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from 
or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by CONTRACTOR, its agents, 
representatives, employees, or subcontractors.  Insurance policies shall be on an occurrence basis, and 
coverage shall be at least as broad and in the minimum amounts as follows:   

5.05.1 California Workers' Compensation Insurance, as required by the State of California, with statutory 
limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limits of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per 
accident for bodily injury or disease. 

5.05.2 General Liability Insurance [ISO Form CG 0001, or equivalent], covering products and completed 
operations, bodily injury, personal & advertising injury and property damage with limits no less than One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence.  If a general aggregate limit is used, either the general 
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the general aggregate limit shall be twice 
the required occurrence limit. 

5.05.3 Automobile Liability Insurance [ISO Form CA 0001 covering code 1 (any auto), or if no owned 
autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), or equivalent forms] with limits no less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

5.05.4 Error and Omissions (Professional Liability) Insurance appropriate to CONTRACTOR’s services, 
with limits no less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence or claim, and Two Million Dollars 
($2,000,000) aggregate. 

5.06 The following are required provisions: 

5.06.1 CONTRACTOR will provide additional insured insurance coverage and policy endorsements for 
DESCANSO and its officers, officials, directors, employees, volunteers, or agents (collectively referred to 
as the “Insured Parties”) under the general liability and automobile liability policies.  The coverage shall 
contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Insured Parties.  General liability 
coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to CONTRACTOR’s insurance (at least as broad 
as ISO Form CG 20 10, 11 85, or both (CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 forms if 
later revisions used)). 

68



- 6 - 

5.06.2 CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall be primary insurance as respects Insured Parties, and each of 
them.  Any insurance, self-insurance or other coverage maintained by Insured Parties shall be excess of 
CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall not contribute to it.   

5.06.3 Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of 
warranties shall not affect coverage provided to Insured Parties.   

5.06.4 CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom a claim is made or 
suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of insurer’s liability.   

5.06.5 Liability insurance shall include indemnification against loss from liability imposed by law upon, 
or assumed under contract by, CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors for damages on account of bodily 
injury, including death resulting therefrom, suffered or alleged to have been suffered by any person or 
persons, other than employees, resulting from the performance or execution of this Agreement by 
CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors. 

5.06.6 Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall 
not be cancelled or materially modified by the insured or insurer without thirty (30) days prior written 
notice by certified mail to DESCANSO.   

5.07 CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation which any insurer of CONTRACTOR 
may acquire from CONTRACTOR by virtue of the payment of any loss.  CONTRACTOR agrees to obtain any 
endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies 
regardless of whether or not such endorsement is provided.  The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be 
endorsed with a waiver of subrogation in favor of Insured Parties for all work performed by CONTRACTOR, 
its employees, agents and subcontractors. 

5.08 Insurance will be purchased from insurance companies with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less 
than A:VII, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by DESCANSO.   

5.09 Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by DESCANSO. DESCANSO may require 
CONTRACTOR to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability to pay losses and 
related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy 
language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by 
either the named insured or DESCANSO. 

5.10 CONTRACTOR will furnish DESCANSO with certificates of insurance prior to the commencement 
of work under this Agreement, and as may be periodically requested by DESCANSO.  CONTRACTOR shall 
include all endorsements necessary to comply with this Agreement, including additional insured 
endorsements, signed by the insurer’s representative.  Such evidence shall include confirmation that 
coverage includes or has been modified to include all provisions required by this Agreement.  
CONTRACTOR shall, upon request of DESCANSO at any time, deliver to DESCANSO complete, certified 
copies of the policies of insurance, including endorsements, and receipts for payment or premiums 
thereon, required by this Agreement.  Failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work 
beginning shall not waive CONTRACTOR’s obligation to provide them.   

5.11 If any of the required coverages expire during the term of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall 
deliver the renewal certificate(s) including the general liability and auto liability additional insured 
endorsements to DESCANSO at least ten (10) days prior to the expiration date. 

69



- 7 - 

5.12 CONTRACTOR shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 
requirements stated herein, and CONTRACTOR shall ensure that DESCANSO is an additional insured on 
insurance required from subcontractors. 

5.13 Claims Made Policies.  If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis: 

5.13.1 The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the Agreement or the 
beginning of contract work. 

5.13.2 Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) 
years after completion of the contract of work. 

5.13.3 If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form 
with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the CONTRACTOR must purchase “extended 
reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.  

Conflict of Interest  

5.14 Upon the award of this Agreement and periodically thereafter, CONTRACTOR may be required to 
complete and file with DESCANSO a Conflict-of-Interest form, to be provided to CONTRACTOR by 
DESCANSO. 

 Assignment/Subcontracting    

5.15 CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract or assign this Agreement nor any duties or obligations under 
this Agreement without the prior written consent of DESCANSO.  CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for 
the acts and omissions of and for payment to any subcontractor performing services under this 
Agreement, and shall bind any such subcontractor to CONTRACTOR’s duties and obligations hereunder.  
DESCANSO shall have the right to approve any subcontractor agreements.  Nothing contained in this 
Agreement will create any contractual relationship between DESCANSO any subcontractor of 
CONTRACTOR. 

Safety 

5.16 CONTRACTOR shall be solely and completely responsible for the safety of all CONTRACTOR 
personnel, including personnel of any subcontractors, during performance of the services under this 
Agreement.  CONTRACTOR shall fully comply with all laws, rules, regulations and ordinances relating to 
safety of the public and workers, whether federal, state or local.  CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all 
contract provisions and DESCANSO’s policies, procedures, departmental rules, and other directives, as 
provided by DESCANSO’s Project Manager to CONTRACTOR, relating to the safety of the public and 
workers, including, but not limited to, DESCANSO’s Contractor Safety Policies and Procedures and any 
project specific requirements. 

ARTICLE 6 
OBLIGATIONS OF DESCANSO   

6.01 DESCANSO agrees to comply with all reasonable requests of CONTRACTOR, including requests to 
access documents, data and facilities reasonably necessary for the performance of CONTRACTOR’s duties 
under this Agreement, consistent with applicable law.  

70



- 8 - 

ARTICLE 7 
TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT 

Termination for Cause  

7.01 If DESCANSO determines that CONTRACTOR has failed to perform the Services under this 
Agreement in accordance its terms and conditions, DESCANSO may terminate all or part of the Agreement 
for cause.  This termination shall become effective if CONTRACTOR does not cure its failure to perform 
within 10 days (or more, if authorized in writing by DESCANSO) after receipt of a notice of intention to 
terminate from DESCANSO specifying the failure in performance.  If a termination for cause does occur, 
DESCANSO shall have the right to withhold monies otherwise payable to CONTRACTOR until the Services 
under this Agreement are completed.  If DESCANSO incurs additional costs, expenses, or other damages 
due to the failure of CONTRACTOR to properly perform under this Agreement, these costs, expenses, or 
other damages shall be deducted from the amounts withheld.  Should the amounts withheld exceed the 
amounts deducted, the balance will be paid to CONTRACTOR upon completion of the Services to be 
provided under this Agreement.  If the costs, expenses, or other damages incurred by DESCANSO exceed 
the amounts withheld, CONTRACTOR shall be liable to DESCANSO for the difference. 

7.02 CONTRACTOR may terminate this Agreement for cause if DESCANSO fails to cure a material 
default in performance within a period of 30 days, or such longer period as CONTRACTOR may allow, after 
DESCANSO’s receipt from CONTRACTOR of a written termination notice specifying the default in 
performance.  In the event of termination for cause by CONTRACTOR, DESCANSO will pay CONTRACTOR 
in accordance with Section 7.03. 

Termination Without Cause   

7.03 DESCANSO may terminate this Agreement for convenience at any time upon written notice to 
CONTRACTOR, in which case, DESCANSO will pay CONTRACTOR for all Services performed and all expenses 
incurred under this Agreement up to and including the effective date of termination less any costs, 
expenses, or other damages due to the failure of the CONTRACTOR to properly perform pursuant to the 
Agreement.  No compensation will be payable for anticipated profit on unperformed services. 

ARTICLE 8 
PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION   

8.01 Any written, printed, graphic, or electronically or magnetically recorded information furnished by 
DESCANSO for CONTRACTOR’s use is the sole property of DESCANSO.  CONTRACTOR and its employee(s) 
and subcontractor(s) will keep any confidential information provided by DESCANSO in the strictest 
confidence, and will not disclose it by any means to any person except with DESCANSO approval, and only 
to the extent necessary to perform the Services under this Agreement.  On termination of this Agreement, 
CONTRACTOR will promptly return to DESCANSO any confidential information in its possession.  

ARTICLE 9 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Notices    

9.01 Any notices required to be given under this Agreement by either party to the other may be 
affected by email, personal delivery, mail (first class, registered, or certified) with postage prepaid and 

71



- 9 - 

return receipt requested.  Mailed notices must be addressed to the parties at the addresses below, but 
each party may change the address by giving written notice in accordance with this Section.   Any notice 
personally delivered or sent by email shall be deemed communicated upon receipt if received before 5:00 
p.m. Pacific Standard Time (“PST”) on a business day, or the following business day if received after 5:00 
p.m. PST or on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday.  Any notice sent by overnight delivery service shall be 
deemed communicated on the next business day following delivery thereof to the overnight delivery 
service.  Any notice given by mail shall be deemed communicated three (3) days after deposit in the United 
States mail. 

To DESCANSO: Descanso Community Water District 
Box 610  (for USPS) 
24680 Viejas Grade Rd, Suite 610  (for Fed Ex or UPS)  
Descanso, CA  91916 

Email: mphillipswater@gmail.com  
Attention: Maureen Phillips, Board President 

To CONTRACTOR: Nigro and Nigro, PC 
 25220 Hancock Street, #400 

Murietta, CA 92562 
 
Email:  pkaymark@nncpas.com  
Attention:  Paul Kaymark, CPA  

Entire Agreement of the Parties   

9.02 This Agreement, including any Attachments, contains the entire understanding between the 
parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous 
agreements and understandings, inducements, or conditions, express or implied, oral or written, except 
as herein contained.  The express terms hereof control and supersede any course of performance and/or 
usage of the trade inconsistent with any of the terms hereof.   

Amendment 

9.03 This Agreement may not be modified or amended other than by a writing signed by the parties, 
including any changes to the scope of services or any timeframes identified in Attachment A. 

Partial Invalidity 

9.04 If any non-material provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be  
invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will continue in full force and effect without 
being impaired or invalidated in any way. 

Attorneys’ Fees 

9.05 If any legal action, including an action for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the 
provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees, which 
may be set by the court in the same action or in a separate action brought for that purpose, in addition to 
any other relief to which that party may be entitled. 

72

mailto:mphillipswater@gmail.com


- 10 - 

Ownership of Documents and Materials 

9.06 All original drawings, data, reports, documents and materials developed for the project, including 
detailed calculations, shall be furnished to and become the property of DESCANSO.  DESCANSO agrees to 
indemnify CONTRACTOR for claims, damages, or liabilities caused by any use by DESCANSO of the plans, 
drawings, specifications, and all information gathered by CONTRACTOR on any project other than the one 
for which such plans, drawings, and specifications were prepared and information gathered by 
CONTRACTOR. 

Audits 

9.07 If this Agreement involves an expenditure of public funds in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars   
($10,000), the Agreement is subject to examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of 
DESCANSO or as part of any audit of DESCANSO, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under 
the Agreement.  CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with DESCANSO, including any authorized representative 
of DESCANSO, regarding such audit at no charge to DESCANSO. 

Counterparts 

9.08 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and electronically, each of which shall constitute  
an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same agreement, and the signature of 
any party to any counterpart shall be deemed a signature to, and may be appended to, any other 
counterpart. 

Provisions Required by Law 

9.09 Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be inserted in this Agreement shall  
be deemed to be inserted herein, and the Agreement shall be read and enforced as though they were 
included herein.  If through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly 
inserted, then upon the request of either party, the Agreement shall forthwith be physically amended to 
make such insertion. 

Governing Law 

9.10 This Agreement and all questions relating to its validity, interpretation, performance, and 
enforcement (including, without limitation, provisions concerning limitations of actions), shall be   
governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

Jurisdiction and Venue 

9.11 The proper jurisdiction and venue for any claims, causes of action or other proceedings arising 
out of or relating to this Agreement shall be in the County of San Diego, State of California, and the parties   
hereby waive any right providing for a change of jurisdiction or forum to any other location. 

No Waiver 

9.12 A waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a 
general waiver or prejudice the other party’s right otherwise to demand strict compliance with that 
provision or any other provisions in this Agreement. Likewise, DESCANSO’s acceptance of any reports, 

73



- 11 - 

work, services or materials furnished pursuant to this Agreement, or DESCANSO’s payment therefor, shall 
not operate as a waiver of any of DESCANSO’s rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action or 
defense relating to the performance of this Agreement. 

False Claims 

9.13 In signing this Agreement, CONTRACTOR certifies that CONTRACTOR shall not submit a false claim 
in violation of the False Claims Act, section 12650 et seq. of the Government Code. 

Signature Authority 

9.14 The parties each covenant that the individual executing this Agreement on their behalf is a person 
duly authorized and empowered to execute this Agreement for such party. 

BY SIGNING BELOW THE PARTIES VOLUNTARILY ENTER INTO THIS AGREEMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGE 
THAT THEY HAVE READ AND UNDERSTAND THE TERMS SET FORTH HEREIN AND AGREE TO BE BOUND 
THEREBY. 

DESCANSO COMMUNITY WATER DISTRICT: 
 
 
      
Signature 
 
      
Name 
 
      
Title 
 
      
Date 
 

CONTRACTOR: 
 
 
      
Signature 
 
      
Name 
 
      
Title 
 
      
Date 
 
 
 
 

  

 

  

74



- 12 - 

Attachment A – Scope of Work 

Description of Auditing Services 
 

1. Pre-Audit Conference- A pre-audit conference (teleconference or videoconference is acceptable) 
is required each year to provide a clear understanding of any conditions to be met by DESCANSO 
staff and responsibilities of CONTRACTOR, so that the audit can be conducted on a timely basis 
and concluded in accordance with predetermined schedules and applicable requirements. 
 

2. Financial Statements- The primary financial statements shall be a Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR).  Any requirements for DESCANSO to report in CAFR format need to be instructed 
in advance. This includes comparative balance sheets on the combined and individual funds at the 
end of the current and preceding year, with supporting notes and schedules that provide details 
of or explain changes in account balances; comparative statements of income and expense for 
the current and preceding year with supporting notes and schedules that details of income 
statement accounts; statement of retained earnings explaining changes in the unappropriated 
earnings account from the beginning to the end of the current fiscal year; and reconciliation of 
net income. 
 

3. Annual Report of Financial Transactions- CONTRACTOR shall prepare and submit the annual 
report to the State Controller pursuant to the requirements set forth in Government Code Section 
26909. This report shall be completed and on file with the State Controller within the mandated 
period.  CONTRACTOR shall submit to DESCANSO a copy of the annual report prior to transmittal 
to the State Controller.  Evidence of submission to the State Controller shall be provided to 
DESCANSO.  Single audit may be required in the event that DESCANSO has expended $750,000 or 
more of federal grant funds in a fiscal year. 
 

4. Opinion Letter- An opinion letter is required attesting to the fair presentation of the financial 
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 

5. Management Report-The audit examination shall evaluate DESCANSO’s accounting system, 
internal control structure, methods of processing data and maintaining financial records. This 
evaluation shall be comprehensive enough in scope to provide for an appropriate report to 
DESCANSO.  CONTRACTOR shall prepare a separate management letter on the internal control 
structure based on CONTRACTOR’s understanding of the control structure and assessment of 
control risk. This report shall be submitted to DESCANSO and shall outline CONTRACTOR’s 
observations and recommendations for enhancement, including any reportable conditions found 
during the audit.  
 

6. Budget and Finance Committee- CONTRACTOR shall provide a draft of the initial comprehensive 
financial report to the DESCANSO’s Budget and Finance Committee within 30 days of completion. 
 

7. Board Meetings- CONTRACTOR shall present in person or electronically a summary of the final 
Comprehensive Financial Report at one or more Board meetings, with dates mutually agreed 
upon.  

75



- 13 - 

8. Exit Conference- An “exit” conference is required with DESCANSO staff. The exit conference shall 
disclose any facts or situations that CONTRACTOR believes have, or have had, a bearing on their 
work or report. DESCANSO staff will do the same. 
 

9. Final Audit Report-Six (6) copies of the Opinion Letter and Final Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report shall be submitted to DESCANSO.  Six (6) copies of the final Management Report shall be 
submitted to DESCANSO. 

Audit Schedule and Other Requirements 
 
CONTRACTOR is required to complete and submit the Annual Report of Financial Transactions of Special 
District prior to the statutory deadline date. Failure of CONTRACTOR to adhere to the schedule with or 
without discussion with DESCANSO may result in the assessment of damages against CONTRACTOR for 
delay. Notwithstanding the foregoing, CONTRACTOR shall not be responsible for delays which are due to 
cause beyond CONTRACTOR’s reasonable control. 
 
CONTRACTOR will provide a schedule of the key elements of the audit. A recommended schedule is the 
following: September 30-  Fieldwork shall be completed; October 31-  Opinion Letter to DESCANSO; 
November 30- Draft CAFR to DESCANSO, all other certifications required of auditors; December- 
presentation to the Board at the quarterly meeting.  
 
CONTRACTOR must be available for telephone consultations with DESCANSO accountant and manager 
throughout the year, as needed, to provide guidance on various accounting matters at no additional cost.  
 

76



PROPOSAL FOR AUDITING SERVICES | 18  

AUDIT FEES 
 

Professional Hours Standard Quoted Total
Partner 12.00                           200.00$                      175.00$                      2,100.00$                  
Manager 24.00                           175.00                        150.00                        3,600.00                     
Senior 24.00                           150.00                        125.00                        3,000.00                     
Staff Members 38.00                           125.00                        100.00                        3,800.00                     
Admin -                               100.00                        75.00                           -                               

Subtotal 98.00                           12,500.00                  

Out‐of‐Pocket	‐	Included	in	Rates	(We	Are	Local) -                               

Total	Max 12,500.00$                

Fiscal	Year FY	2023 FY	2024 FY	2025 Total

District	ACFR 12,000$                      12,000$                      12,000$                      36,000$                      
State	Controller's	 500$                            500$                            500$                            1,500$                         

Total 12,500$                      12,500$                      12,500$                      37,500$                      

Same	Price	for	FY	2026	and	FY	2027

Federal	Single‐Audit	$5,000	per	major	program	if	not	clustered

Rates

 
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
Testimonial	
 
 

"Few	 people	 have	 the	 opportunity	 to	work	with	 someone	who	was	 a	 coach	 and	 a	
mentor‐but	I	did	when	I	worked	with	Paul.		I	had	the	pleasure	working	directly	under	
Paul’s	supervision	and	I	was	particularly	impressed	by	his	ability	to	handle	even	the	
toughest	clients	–	and	effortlessly.		That	skill	often	takes	years	to	develop,	but	it	seemed	
to	come	perfectly	natural	to	him.		Paul	was	one	of	those	rare	partners	who	also	naturally	
serve	as	an	inspiring	mentor	for	the	whole	staff	and	I	was	grateful	to	learn	a	lot	from	
him.”	

  
Deana	Miller	
Accounting	Manager	
PolyCera,	Inc.	

	
	
 

Fraud	Hotline	
 

Throughout the audit process, we will make available our fraud hotline reporting service at no 
additional charge over the period of the contract to ensure the District has an effective anti-fraud 
program.  

77



 

 

Item 10 

STATUS OF WELL NO. 7 IMPROVEMENTS AND IRON MANGANESE TREATMENT FACILITY 
IMPROVEMENTS:  

The District Engineer will update the Board regarding the Treatment Project Status and the 
Board will take appropriate action. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes: 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

78



 

 

Item 11 

PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATION FEASIBLITY STUDY FOR GUATAY MUTUAL BENEFIT 
CORPORATION:  

The District Engineer provide an presentation of the consolidation and feasibility study for 
Guatay Mutal and the Board will take appropriate action. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

79



 

 

Item 12 

CLOSED SESSION CONTRACT DISCUSSION:  

The Board will discuss the current contract for engineering services and take appropriate 
action. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes: 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

80



 

 

Item 13 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT:  

The GM will provide a report for activities occurring since the last meeting. 

A. Water quality and customer complaints 

B. Water usage and testing results 

C. Engineering Report 

D. Q&A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes: 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

81



 

 

Item 14 

DCWD BOARD OF DIRECTORS NEWSLETTER:  

The Board will discuss a draft outline of the DCWD Board of Directors Newsletter and take 
appropriate action. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes: 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

82



 

 

Item 15 

SUCH OTHER ITEMS DIRECTLY RELATED TO THE PREVIOUS AGENDA ITEMS ABOVE AS MAY BE 

BROUGHT BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

83



 

 

Item 16 

 

MOTION TO ADJOURN. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Notes: 

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________

______________________________________________________________________________ 

84


	ADP9652.tmp
	Minutes

	ADP460.tmp
	Minutes

	Nigro and Nigro Descanso Professional Services Agreement for Auditor Services(7125009.1).pdf
	ADP1E34.tmp
	ARTICLE 1  TERM OF AGREEMENT
	1.01 The term of this Agreement shall commence on September 20, 2023 and will continue in effect through completion of the Services described in Attachment A – Scope of Work (“Attachment A”) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025, with an option to ...

	ARTICLE 2  SCOPE OF WORK
	2.01 CONTRACTOR shall perform the services within the scope described in Attachment A and as  authorized by DESCANSO (the “Services”).  CONTRACTOR will provide DESCANSO with periodic reports regarding the progress of Services performed, as described i...
	2.02 CONTRACTOR shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the above-described Services.  CONTRACTOR shall supply all labor, tools, materials, and equipment required to perform the Services under this Agreement.
	2.03 CONTRACTOR shall perform the Services required hereunder in accordance with the prevailing standard of care by exercising the skill and ability customarily exercised by reputable members of CONTRACTOR’s profession providing the same or similar se...
	2.04 DESCANSO has a primary interest in maintaining the individual services of the following key project team members:
	1. Paul Kaymark, CPA
	2. Anabel Cruz, CPA

	2.05 No member of the project team shall be removed from the project team or reassigned by CONTRACTOR without prior approval of DESCANSO.  CONTRACTOR shall immediately inform DESCANSO, in writing, should any of the key members become unavailable.  CON...

	ARTICLE 3  COMPENSATION
	3.01 Compensation payable to CONTRACTOR for Services performed under this Agreement shall be on a time and materials basis, as described in Attachment A, not to exceed Twelve thousand five hundred Dollars ($ 12,500) per fiscal year or Thirty seven tho...
	3.02 DESCANSO will reimburse CONTRACTOR for all reasonable expenses incurred in performing Services under this Agreement as the work progresses, provided that such reasonable expenses shall be included in and subject to the maximum compensation amount...
	3.03 DESCANSO shall have the right to withhold payment from CONTRACTOR for any unsatisfactory Services until such time service is performed satisfactorily or as otherwise provided for in this Agreement.

	ARTICLE 4  RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES
	4.01 It is expressly understood and agreed that CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and its employees are not employees of DESCANSO while engaged in carrying out this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR is free from the control and direction of DESCANSO in con...
	4.02 To the maximum extent allowable by law, CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, defend and hold  DESCANSO harmless from any and all liability, damages, or losses (including attorneys’ fees, costs, penalties, and fines) that DESCANSO suffers as a result o...
	4.03 The parties acknowledge that their relationship is non-exclusive and CONTRACTOR may perform or engage in any activity not inconsistent with this Agreement, including performing services for, or contracting with, other clients, persons, or compani...

	ARTICLE 5  OBLIGATIONS OF CONTRACTOR
	5.01 In performing the Services specified in this Agreement, CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all  applicable laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances, whether federal, state, or local, and any and all applicable DESCANSO policies, procedures, departm...
	5.02 CONTRACTOR shall ensure that any report generated under this Agreement complies with California Government Code section 7550.
	5.03 To the maximum extent allowable by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend, and hold  harmless DESCANSO and its officials, officers, directors, employees, agents and volunteers (collectively referred to as the “Indemnified Parties”) against all c...
	5.03.1 CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with and do whatever is necessary to protect Indemnified Parties from any such Liabilities.
	5.03.2 CONTRACTOR shall defend Indemnified Parties, at CONTRACTOR’s own cost, expense and risk, from any and all such aforesaid Liabilities asserted in claims, demands, actions, causes of action, arbitration, mediations or other proceedings of any kin...
	5.03.3 If CONTRACTOR is obligated to defend Indemnified Parties pursuant to this Article 5 and fails to do so after reasonable notice from DESCANSO, Indemnified Parties may defend themselves and/or settle such claims, suit or assertion, and CONTRACTOR...
	5.03.4 CONTRACTOR shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, liability, or decree that may be awarded, imposed, or rendered against Indemnified Parties as a result of any claims, demands, suits, actions, causes of action, arbitrations, mediations, or ...
	5.03.5 CONTRACTOR’s obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold DESCANSO harmless against all Liabilities shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for CONTRACTOR, subcont...
	5.03.6 CONTRACTOR’s indemnification, hold harmless, and defense obligation shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

	5.04 CONTRACTOR shall give DESCANSO written notice of any claim or liability asserted by a third party that arises from or relates to the Work performed under this Agreement (“Third-Party Claim”), as soon as possible upon the receipt of information of...
	5.05 CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain in full force and effect for the duration of this Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work here...
	5.05.1 California Workers' Compensation Insurance, as required by the State of California, with statutory limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limits of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury or disease.
	5.05.2 General Liability Insurance [ISO Form CG 0001, or equivalent], covering products and completed operations, bodily injury, personal & advertising injury and property damage with limits no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence...
	5.05.3 Automobile Liability Insurance [ISO Form CA 0001 covering code 1 (any auto), or if no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), or equivalent forms] with limits no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury a...
	5.05.4 Error and Omissions (Professional Liability) Insurance appropriate to CONTRACTOR’s services, with limits no less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence or claim, and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate.

	5.06 The following are required provisions:
	5.06.1 CONTRACTOR will provide additional insured insurance coverage and policy endorsements for DESCANSO and its officers, officials, directors, employees, volunteers, or agents (collectively referred to as the “Insured Parties”) under the general li...
	5.06.2 CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall be primary insurance as respects Insured Parties, and each of them.  Any insurance, self-insurance or other coverage maintained by Insured Parties shall be excess of CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall not contribute t...
	5.06.3 Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to Insured Parties.
	5.06.4 CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom a claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of insurer’s liability.
	5.06.5 Liability insurance shall include indemnification against loss from liability imposed by law upon, or assumed under contract by, CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors for damages on account of bodily injury, including death resulting therefrom, suff...
	5.06.6 Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be cancelled or materially modified by the insured or insurer without thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail to DESCANSO.

	5.07 CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation which any insurer of CONTRACTOR may acquire from CONTRACTOR by virtue of the payment of any loss.  CONTRACTOR agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of ...
	5.08 Insurance will be purchased from insurance companies with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by DESCANSO.
	5.09 Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by DESCANSO. DESCANSO may require CONTRACTOR to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defe...
	5.10 CONTRACTOR will furnish DESCANSO with certificates of insurance prior to the commencement of work under this Agreement, and as may be periodically requested by DESCANSO.  CONTRACTOR shall include all endorsements necessary to comply with this Agr...
	5.11 If any of the required coverages expire during the term of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall deliver the renewal certificate(s) including the general liability and auto liability additional insured endorsements to DESCANSO at least ten (10) days p...
	5.12 CONTRACTOR shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated herein, and CONTRACTOR shall ensure that DESCANSO is an additional insured on insurance required from subcontractors.
	5.13 Claims Made Policies.  If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
	5.13.1 The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the Agreement or the beginning of contract work.
	5.13.2 Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work.
	5.13.3 If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the CONTRACTOR must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) yea...

	5.14 Upon the award of this Agreement and periodically thereafter, CONTRACTOR may be required to complete and file with DESCANSO a Conflict-of-Interest form, to be provided to CONTRACTOR by DESCANSO.
	5.15 CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract or assign this Agreement nor any duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of DESCANSO.  CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the acts and omissions of and for payment to any subc...
	5.16 CONTRACTOR shall be solely and completely responsible for the safety of all CONTRACTOR personnel, including personnel of any subcontractors, during performance of the services under this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR shall fully comply with all laws, ru...

	ARTICLE 6  OBLIGATIONS OF DESCANSO
	6.01 DESCANSO agrees to comply with all reasonable requests of CONTRACTOR, including requests to access documents, data and facilities reasonably necessary for the performance of CONTRACTOR’s duties under this Agreement, consistent with applicable law.

	ARTICLE 7  TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT
	7.01 If DESCANSO determines that CONTRACTOR has failed to perform the Services under this Agreement in accordance its terms and conditions, DESCANSO may terminate all or part of the Agreement for cause.  This termination shall become effective if CONT...
	7.02 CONTRACTOR may terminate this Agreement for cause if DESCANSO fails to cure a material default in performance within a period of 30 days, or such longer period as CONTRACTOR may allow, after DESCANSO’s receipt from CONTRACTOR of a written termina...
	7.03 DESCANSO may terminate this Agreement for convenience at any time upon written notice to CONTRACTOR, in which case, DESCANSO will pay CONTRACTOR for all Services performed and all expenses incurred under this Agreement up to and including the eff...

	ARTICLE 8  PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
	8.01 Any written, printed, graphic, or electronically or magnetically recorded information furnished by DESCANSO for CONTRACTOR’s use is the sole property of DESCANSO.  CONTRACTOR and its employee(s) and subcontractor(s) will keep any confidential inf...

	ARTICLE 9  GENERAL PROVISIONS
	9.01 Any notices required to be given under this Agreement by either party to the other may be affected by email, personal delivery, mail (first class, registered, or certified) with postage prepaid and return receipt requested.  Mailed notices must b...
	9.02 This Agreement, including any Attachments, contains the entire understanding between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings, inducements, or conditi...
	9.03 This Agreement may not be modified or amended other than by a writing signed by the parties, including any changes to the scope of services or any timeframes identified in Attachment A.
	9.04 If any non-material provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be  invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will continue in full force and effect without being impaired or invalidated in any way.
	9.05 If any legal action, including an action for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees, which may be set by the court in the same a...
	9.06 All original drawings, data, reports, documents and materials developed for the project, including detailed calculations, shall be furnished to and become the property of DESCANSO.  DESCANSO agrees to indemnify CONTRACTOR for claims, damages, or ...
	9.07 If this Agreement involves an expenditure of public funds in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars   ($10,000), the Agreement is subject to examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of DESCANSO or as part of any audit of DESCANSO, for a...
	9.08 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and electronically, each of which shall constitute  an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same agreement, and the signature of any party to any counterpart shall be deem...
	9.09 Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be inserted in this Agreement shall  be deemed to be inserted herein, and the Agreement shall be read and enforced as though they were included herein.  If through mistake or otherwise...
	9.10 This Agreement and all questions relating to its validity, interpretation, performance, and enforcement (including, without limitation, provisions concerning limitations of actions), shall be   governed by and construed in accordance with the law...
	9.11 The proper jurisdiction and venue for any claims, causes of action or other proceedings arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be in the County of San Diego, State of California, and the parties   hereby waive any right providing for ...
	9.12 A waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a general waiver or prejudice the other party’s right otherwise to demand strict compliance with that provision or any other provisions in this Agreement...
	9.13 In signing this Agreement, CONTRACTOR certifies that CONTRACTOR shall not submit a false claim in violation of the False Claims Act, section 12650 et seq. of the Government Code.
	9.14 The parties each covenant that the individual executing this Agreement on their behalf is a person duly authorized and empowered to execute this Agreement for such party.


	ADP4F45.tmp
	ARTICLE 1  TERM OF AGREEMENT
	1.01 The term of this Agreement shall commence on September 20, 2023 and will continue in effect through completion of the Services described in Attachment A – Scope of Work (“Attachment A”) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025, with an option to ...

	ARTICLE 2  SCOPE OF WORK
	2.01 CONTRACTOR shall perform the services within the scope described in Attachment A and as  authorized by DESCANSO (the “Services”).  CONTRACTOR will provide DESCANSO with periodic reports regarding the progress of Services performed, as described i...
	2.02 CONTRACTOR shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the above-described Services.  CONTRACTOR shall supply all labor, tools, materials, and equipment required to perform the Services under this Agreement.
	2.03 CONTRACTOR shall perform the Services required hereunder in accordance with the prevailing standard of care by exercising the skill and ability customarily exercised by reputable members of CONTRACTOR’s profession providing the same or similar se...
	2.04 DESCANSO has a primary interest in maintaining the individual services of the following key project team members:
	1. Paul Kaymark, CPA
	2. Anabel Cruz, CPA

	2.05 No member of the project team shall be removed from the project team or reassigned by CONTRACTOR without prior approval of DESCANSO.  CONTRACTOR shall immediately inform DESCANSO, in writing, should any of the key members become unavailable.  CON...

	ARTICLE 3  COMPENSATION
	3.01 Compensation payable to CONTRACTOR for Services performed under this Agreement shall be on a time and materials basis, as described in Attachment A, not to exceed Twelve thousand five hundred Dollars ($ 12,500) per fiscal year or Thirty seven tho...
	3.02 DESCANSO will reimburse CONTRACTOR for all reasonable expenses incurred in performing Services under this Agreement as the work progresses, provided that such reasonable expenses shall be included in and subject to the maximum compensation amount...
	3.03 DESCANSO shall have the right to withhold payment from CONTRACTOR for any unsatisfactory Services until such time service is performed satisfactorily or as otherwise provided for in this Agreement.

	ARTICLE 4  RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES
	4.01 It is expressly understood and agreed that CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor and its employees are not employees of DESCANSO while engaged in carrying out this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR is free from the control and direction of DESCANSO in con...
	4.02 To the maximum extent allowable by law, CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify, defend and hold  DESCANSO harmless from any and all liability, damages, or losses (including attorneys’ fees, costs, penalties, and fines) that DESCANSO suffers as a result o...
	4.03 The parties acknowledge that their relationship is non-exclusive and CONTRACTOR may perform or engage in any activity not inconsistent with this Agreement, including performing services for, or contracting with, other clients, persons, or compani...

	ARTICLE 5  OBLIGATIONS OF CONTRACTOR
	5.01 In performing the Services specified in this Agreement, CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all  applicable laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances, whether federal, state, or local, and any and all applicable DESCANSO policies, procedures, departm...
	5.02 CONTRACTOR shall ensure that any report generated under this Agreement complies with California Government Code section 7550.
	5.03 To the maximum extent allowable by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend, and hold  harmless DESCANSO and its officials, officers, directors, employees, agents and volunteers (collectively referred to as the “Indemnified Parties”) against all c...
	5.03.1 CONTRACTOR shall cooperate with and do whatever is necessary to protect Indemnified Parties from any such Liabilities.
	5.03.2 CONTRACTOR shall defend Indemnified Parties, at CONTRACTOR’s own cost, expense and risk, from any and all such aforesaid Liabilities asserted in claims, demands, actions, causes of action, arbitration, mediations or other proceedings of any kin...
	5.03.3 If CONTRACTOR is obligated to defend Indemnified Parties pursuant to this Article 5 and fails to do so after reasonable notice from DESCANSO, Indemnified Parties may defend themselves and/or settle such claims, suit or assertion, and CONTRACTOR...
	5.03.4 CONTRACTOR shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award, liability, or decree that may be awarded, imposed, or rendered against Indemnified Parties as a result of any claims, demands, suits, actions, causes of action, arbitrations, mediations, or ...
	5.03.5 CONTRACTOR’s obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold DESCANSO harmless against all Liabilities shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for CONTRACTOR, subcont...
	5.03.6 CONTRACTOR’s indemnification, hold harmless, and defense obligation shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

	5.04 CONTRACTOR shall give DESCANSO written notice of any claim or liability asserted by a third party that arises from or relates to the Work performed under this Agreement (“Third-Party Claim”), as soon as possible upon the receipt of information of...
	5.05 CONTRACTOR shall procure and maintain in full force and effect for the duration of this Agreement, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work here...
	5.05.1 California Workers' Compensation Insurance, as required by the State of California, with statutory limits, and Employer’s Liability Insurance with limits of no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury or disease.
	5.05.2 General Liability Insurance [ISO Form CG 0001, or equivalent], covering products and completed operations, bodily injury, personal & advertising injury and property damage with limits no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence...
	5.05.3 Automobile Liability Insurance [ISO Form CA 0001 covering code 1 (any auto), or if no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), or equivalent forms] with limits no less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for bodily injury a...
	5.05.4 Error and Omissions (Professional Liability) Insurance appropriate to CONTRACTOR’s services, with limits no less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence or claim, and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) aggregate.

	5.06 The following are required provisions:
	5.06.1 CONTRACTOR will provide additional insured insurance coverage and policy endorsements for DESCANSO and its officers, officials, directors, employees, volunteers, or agents (collectively referred to as the “Insured Parties”) under the general li...
	5.06.2 CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall be primary insurance as respects Insured Parties, and each of them.  Any insurance, self-insurance or other coverage maintained by Insured Parties shall be excess of CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall not contribute t...
	5.06.3 Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to Insured Parties.
	5.06.4 CONTRACTOR’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom a claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of insurer’s liability.
	5.06.5 Liability insurance shall include indemnification against loss from liability imposed by law upon, or assumed under contract by, CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors for damages on account of bodily injury, including death resulting therefrom, suff...
	5.06.6 Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be cancelled or materially modified by the insured or insurer without thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail to DESCANSO.

	5.07 CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive rights of subrogation which any insurer of CONTRACTOR may acquire from CONTRACTOR by virtue of the payment of any loss.  CONTRACTOR agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of ...
	5.08 Insurance will be purchased from insurance companies with a current A.M. Best’s rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by DESCANSO.
	5.09 Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by DESCANSO. DESCANSO may require CONTRACTOR to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defe...
	5.10 CONTRACTOR will furnish DESCANSO with certificates of insurance prior to the commencement of work under this Agreement, and as may be periodically requested by DESCANSO.  CONTRACTOR shall include all endorsements necessary to comply with this Agr...
	5.11 If any of the required coverages expire during the term of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall deliver the renewal certificate(s) including the general liability and auto liability additional insured endorsements to DESCANSO at least ten (10) days p...
	5.12 CONTRACTOR shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the requirements stated herein, and CONTRACTOR shall ensure that DESCANSO is an additional insured on insurance required from subcontractors.
	5.13 Claims Made Policies.  If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
	5.13.1 The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the Agreement or the beginning of contract work.
	5.13.2 Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the contract of work.
	5.13.3 If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the CONTRACTOR must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) yea...

	5.14 Upon the award of this Agreement and periodically thereafter, CONTRACTOR may be required to complete and file with DESCANSO a Conflict-of-Interest form, to be provided to CONTRACTOR by DESCANSO.
	5.15 CONTRACTOR shall not subcontract or assign this Agreement nor any duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of DESCANSO.  CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the acts and omissions of and for payment to any subc...
	5.16 CONTRACTOR shall be solely and completely responsible for the safety of all CONTRACTOR personnel, including personnel of any subcontractors, during performance of the services under this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR shall fully comply with all laws, ru...

	ARTICLE 6  OBLIGATIONS OF DESCANSO
	6.01 DESCANSO agrees to comply with all reasonable requests of CONTRACTOR, including requests to access documents, data and facilities reasonably necessary for the performance of CONTRACTOR’s duties under this Agreement, consistent with applicable law.

	ARTICLE 7  TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT
	7.01 If DESCANSO determines that CONTRACTOR has failed to perform the Services under this Agreement in accordance its terms and conditions, DESCANSO may terminate all or part of the Agreement for cause.  This termination shall become effective if CONT...
	7.02 CONTRACTOR may terminate this Agreement for cause if DESCANSO fails to cure a material default in performance within a period of 30 days, or such longer period as CONTRACTOR may allow, after DESCANSO’s receipt from CONTRACTOR of a written termina...
	7.03 DESCANSO may terminate this Agreement for convenience at any time upon written notice to CONTRACTOR, in which case, DESCANSO will pay CONTRACTOR for all Services performed and all expenses incurred under this Agreement up to and including the eff...

	ARTICLE 8  PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION
	8.01 Any written, printed, graphic, or electronically or magnetically recorded information furnished by DESCANSO for CONTRACTOR’s use is the sole property of DESCANSO.  CONTRACTOR and its employee(s) and subcontractor(s) will keep any confidential inf...

	ARTICLE 9  GENERAL PROVISIONS
	9.01 Any notices required to be given under this Agreement by either party to the other may be affected by email, personal delivery, mail (first class, registered, or certified) with postage prepaid and return receipt requested.  Mailed notices must b...
	9.02 This Agreement, including any Attachments, contains the entire understanding between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings, inducements, or conditi...
	9.03 This Agreement may not be modified or amended other than by a writing signed by the parties, including any changes to the scope of services or any timeframes identified in Attachment A.
	9.04 If any non-material provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be  invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining provisions will continue in full force and effect without being impaired or invalidated in any way.
	9.05 If any legal action, including an action for declaratory relief, is brought to enforce or interpret the provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing party will be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees, which may be set by the court in the same a...
	9.06 All original drawings, data, reports, documents and materials developed for the project, including detailed calculations, shall be furnished to and become the property of DESCANSO.  DESCANSO agrees to indemnify CONTRACTOR for claims, damages, or ...
	9.07 If this Agreement involves an expenditure of public funds in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars   ($10,000), the Agreement is subject to examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of DESCANSO or as part of any audit of DESCANSO, for a...
	9.08 This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and electronically, each of which shall constitute  an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same agreement, and the signature of any party to any counterpart shall be deem...
	9.09 Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be inserted in this Agreement shall  be deemed to be inserted herein, and the Agreement shall be read and enforced as though they were included herein.  If through mistake or otherwise...
	9.10 This Agreement and all questions relating to its validity, interpretation, performance, and enforcement (including, without limitation, provisions concerning limitations of actions), shall be   governed by and construed in accordance with the law...
	9.11 The proper jurisdiction and venue for any claims, causes of action or other proceedings arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be in the County of San Diego, State of California, and the parties   hereby waive any right providing for ...
	9.12 A waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a general waiver or prejudice the other party’s right otherwise to demand strict compliance with that provision or any other provisions in this Agreement...
	9.13 In signing this Agreement, CONTRACTOR certifies that CONTRACTOR shall not submit a false claim in violation of the False Claims Act, section 12650 et seq. of the Government Code.
	9.14 The parties each covenant that the individual executing this Agreement on their behalf is a person duly authorized and empowered to execute this Agreement for such party.






